
 

     MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Members of the Commission    
 
From:  Nancy Wittenberg 
  Executive Director 
 
Date:  October 4, 2018 
 
Subject: Summary of the October 12, 2018 Meeting Packet 
 
 
Minutes 
The September 14, 2018 Commission Meeting minutes (open and closed session) and attachments are 
included in your packet.   
 
Public Development Applications 
The following public development applications are being recommended for approval with conditions: 
 

1. Application Number 1982-2731.011/Ocean County Board of Chosen Freeholders, 
Manchester Township, Regional Growth Area, Construction of an 18,400 square foot bus 
garage, a 9,000 square foot office building, a 30,000 square foot two story warehouse and 
a 3.9 acre leaf composting facility. 

 
2. Application Number 2001-0236.001/Monroe Township, Monroe Township, Regional 

Growth Area, Construction of four recreational fields and a 193 space parking lot. 
 

Waiver of Strict Compliance 
One Waiver of Strict Compliance application is being recommended for approval with conditions. This 
application proposes the development of one single family dwelling. 
 
Letter of Interpretation 
No Pinelands Development Credit (PDC) Letters of Interpretations were issued since the last 
Commission meeting. 
 
Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approval 
Two Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approvals (attached) were issued since the last Commission 
meeting. 
 
  



2 
 

Planning Matters 
Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-
2018 are being recommended for certification at this month’s meeting.  Ordinance 1993-2018 adopts 
affordable housing set-aside requirements and standards for affordable housing construction and 
administration. Ordinance 1994-2018 adopts a redevelopment plan for the Nantucket Redevelopment 
Area, which is located on the White Horse Pike in the Regional Growth Area.  
 
We are also recommending certification of Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, which adopts 
amendments to the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan.  The Browns Mills Town Center 
Redevelopment Area is located entirely within a Regional Growth Area. 
 
We have included a resolution related to the acquisition of a 4.15-acre parcel pursuant to the Limited 
Practical Use land acquisition program.  The subject property is located in a Pinelands Town 
management area in Galloway Township (Pinelands Application # 2007-0398.001). We are 
recommending that the Commission approve the acquisition of this parcel.  To date, the Commission has 
approved the acquisition of 481 parcels totaling 1,568 acres under the Limited Practical Use program.  
 
Also on the agenda is the adoption of amendments to the Comprehensive Management Plan. We have 
enclosed a resolution, an adoption notice and the July 2018 rule proposal published in the New Jersey 
Register. No written public comments on the amendments were received. We are recommending 
adoption of the amendments without any changes. 
 
Master Plans and Ordinances Not Requiring Commission Action 
We have included a memorandum on 12 master plan and ordinance amendments that we reviewed and 
found to raise no substantial issues with respect to Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP) standards. 
These amendments were submitted by Barnegat Township, Buena Borough, Monroe Township, Upper 
Township, Waterford Township, Weymouth Township and Winslow Township.  
 
Other Items 
Also included in this month’s packet is:  
 

1. A list of pending Public Development and Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications for which 
public comment will be accepted at the October 12, 2018 Commission meeting. 
 

Closed Session 
The Commission may need to convene into closed session. 
 
Please note that future meetings and office closure dates, as well as any Pinelands-related activities of 
interest, are listed at the bottom of the agenda.        
 
/ PC1 



 

NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
Friday, October 12, 2018 

Richard J. Sullivan Center for Environmental Policy and Education 
Terrence D. Moore Conference Room 

15C Springfield Road  
New Lisbon, New Jersey  

9:30 a.m.    
 

1. Call to Order 
 

 Open Public Meetings Act Statement  
 Roll Call  
 Pledge Allegiance to the Flag 

 
2. Adoption of Minutes  

 
 September 14, 2018  (Open and Closed Sessions- Part 1 & Part 2) 

 
3.  Committee Chairs' and Executive Director's Reports  

 
4.  Matters for Commission Consideration Where the Record is Closed 
 

A. Permitting Matters 
 

 Office of Administrative Law  
 

• None 
 

 Review of Local Approval  
 

• None 
 

 Public Development Projects and Waivers of Strict Compliance 
 

• Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development 
(Application Number 1982-2731.011) (construction of a bus garage, an office 
building, a warehouse and a leaf composting facility in Manchester 
Township.) 
 



2 
 

• Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development 
(Application Number 2001-0236.001) (construction of four recreation fields 
and a parking lot in Monroe Township.) 

 
• Approving With Conditions an Application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance 

(Application Number 1985-0713.002) (development of a single family 
dwelling in Southampton Township.) 

 
B.      Planning Matters 

 
 Municipal Master Plans and Ordinances  

 
• Issuing an Order to Certify the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and 

Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 of Galloway Township 
 

• Issuing an Order to Certify Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, 
Amending the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan  

 
 Other Resolutions 

 
• Determining the Eligibility of a Parcel of Land for Acquisition by the 

Department of Environmental Protection Pursuant to the Limited Practical 
Use Program 

 
 CMP Amendments  

 
• To Adopt Amendments to the Comprehensive Management Plan in 

Accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act (Alternate Design 
Wastewater Treatment Systems Pilot Program) 

     
5.   Public Comment on Public Development Applications and Waivers of Strict Compliance (see 

attached list) and Resolutions Where the Record is Not Closed (to ensure adequate time for all 
members of the public to comment, we will respectfully limit comments to three (3) minutes.  
Questions raised during this period may not be responded to at this time but where feasible, will 
be followed up by the Commission and its staff.) 

 
    6.    Master Plans and Ordinances Not Requiring Commission Action 
 

 Barnegat Township Ordinance 2018-17 
 Buena Borough Planning Board Resolution 2018-16 
 Buena Borough Ordinance 670 
 Monroe Township Ordinance O:23-2018 
 Upper Township 2018 Master Plan Reexamination Report 
 Upper Township Housing Plan and Fair Share Plan 
 Upper Township Ordinance 011-2018 
 Waterford Township Ordinances 2018-23, 2018-24 & 2018-25 
 Weymouth Township Ordinance 561-2018 
 Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-018 

 



3 
 

  7. Presentations 
 

 Annual Update on Permanent Land Protection in the Pinelands Area 
 

  8. General Public Comment (to ensure adequate time for all members of the public to comment, we 
will respectfully limit comments to three (3) minutes.  Questions raised during this period may not 
be responded to at this time but where feasible, will be followed up by the Commission and its 
staff.) 

 
   9.  Resolution to Retire into Closed Session (if needed) – Personnel, Litigation and Acquisition                             

Matters (The Commission reserves the right to reconvene into public session to take action on 
closed session items.) 

 
    10.  Adjournment 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
◘    ◘     ◘ 

 
 
 
Pinelands Commission and Committee meeting agendas are posted on the Commission’s Web site and 
can be viewed at www.nj.gov/pinelands/.  The agendas are also posted and can be viewed at the 
Pinelands Commission Offices, 15 Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey or for more information 
on agenda details, e-mail the Public Programs Office  at Info@pinelands.nj.gov or call (609) 894-7300. 
 
 

Upcoming Meetings 
 Unless otherwise noted, all meetings/events are conducted at the  

offices of the Pinelands Commission in New Lisbon 
 
Fri., Oct. 26, 2018        Policy and Implementation Committee Meeting (9:30 a.m.) 
Fri., Nov. 9, 2018    Pinelands Commission Meeting (9:30 a.m.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Upcoming Office Closures 
 
        Mon, October 8, 2018    Columbus Day 
        Tues., Nov. 6, 2018        Election Day 
        Mon., Nov. 12, 2018      Veterans Day 
 

http://www.nj.gov/pinelands/
mailto:info@njpines.state.nj.us
mailto:Info@pinelands.nj.gov


PC2-65 
 

                                                                            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PINELANDS COMMISSION MEETING 
Richard J. Sullivan Center 

Terrence D. Moore Conference Room 
15 Springfield Road 

New Lisbon, New Jersey 
 

MINUTES 
 

September 14, 2018 
 
 

Commissioners Present  
Alan W. Avery Jr., Bob Barr, Paul E. Galletta, Jordan P. Howell, Jane Jannarone, Ed 
Lloyd, Mark Lohbauer, William Pikolycky, Richard Prickett, Gary Quinn and Chairman 
Sean Earlen.  Also present were Executive Director Nancy Wittenberg, Governor’s 
Authorities Unit representative Craig Ambrose and Deputy Attorney Generals (DAG) 
Kristen Heinzerling and Bruce Velzy.  
 
Commissioners Participating by Phone 
D’Arcy Rohan Green. 
 
Commissioners Absent 
Candace Ashmun and Giuseppe Chila. 
 
Chairman Earlen called the meeting to order at 9:37 a.m.   
 
DAG Velzy read the Open Public Meetings Act Statement (OPMA). 
 
Executive Director Nancy Wittenberg called the roll and announced the presence of a 
quorum.  (There were 12 Commissioners who participated in the meeting.) 
 
The Commission and public in attendance pledged allegiance to the Flag. 
 



PC2-66 
 

Chairman Earlen said that the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 
(NJDEP) will not be attending today’s meeting to discuss the Bass River Fire Tower 
application or any matter. 
 
Minutes 

Chairman Earlen presented the open session minutes from the August 10, 2018 
Commission meeting.  Commissioner Lohbauer moved the adoption of the minutes.  
Commissioner Jannarone seconded the motion.   
 
Chairman Earlen said he would be voting no on the minutes. He felt that the inaction by the 
Commission related to Bass River Fire Tower application did not comply with the 
Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP).  He added that the OPMA was violated and new 
information was added into the record when the record was closed. 
 
The August 10, 2018 Commission meeting minutes were adopted by a vote of 9 to 1. 
Commissioner Barr and Commissioner Quinn abstained from the vote. 
  
Chairman Earlen presented the closed session minutes from the August 10, 2018 
Commission meeting. Commissioner Howell left the dais. Commissioner Lohbauer moved 
the adoption of the minutes.  Commissioner Avery seconded the motion.   
 
The August 10, 2018 closed session Commission meeting minutes were adopted by a vote 
of 10 to 0. Commissioner Howell recused from the vote and Commissioner Quinn 
abstained. 
 
Commissioner Howell returned to the dais. 
 
Committee Chairs' Reports 
Chairman Earlen provided an update on the August 24, 2018 Policy and Implementation 
(P&I) Committee meeting: 
 
The Committee adopted the minutes of the July 27, 2018 meeting. 
 
The Committee met with representatives from the South Jersey Transportation Authority 
(SJTA) and the Atlantic City Airport regarding the 2004 Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) and safety concerns regarding the grassland habitat conservation plan.  The 
Committee was informed of the FAA requirements that due to safety concerns, the 
grassland habitat had to be located at least 10,000 feet from the runways.  The Committee 
agreed to recommend to the full Commission, that staff be directed to engage in further 
discussion with SJTA regarding the relocation of the grassland habitat and developing an 
amended or new MOA The Committee requested an opportunity to see the current habitat 
first-hand prior to seasonal mowing. (Several Commissioners visited the site on September 
4, 2018) 
 
The Committee received a presentation on a proposal to be submitted jointly with the 
United States Geological Survey (USGS) to the New Jersey Department of Environmental 



PC2-67 
 

Protection (NJDEP) to evaluate the effectiveness of pollutant removal by various 
stormwater facilities located in the Barnegat Bay watershed. 
 
Oral Motion 
Stacey Roth said that the process for considering an Intergovernmental Agreement was 
revised in February of 2016.  She said an oral motion from the full Commission is needed 
to authorize staff to work with SJTA to create either a new or amended Memorandum of 
Agreement (MOA) to address the relocation of grassland habitat at the Atlantic City 
Airport.  
 
Commissioner Galletta made a motion authorizing staff to work with SJTA on an amended 
MOA. Commissioner Pikolycky seconded the motion. All were in favor and the motion 
carried. 
 
Executive Director’s Reports 
ED Wittenberg said Commissioners who participated by phone during the August 
Commission meeting had difficulty hearing the proceedings.  She said the company who 
originally installed the microphones and recording system met with staff and discussed 
options to resolve the issue.  She said the ceilings are high and the integrated systems are 
not compatible. 
 
Director Larry Liggett said he has been in contact with 25 Pinelands towns that have 
Regional Growth Areas, notifying municipal officials about Pinelands Infrastructure Trust 
Fund monies that are available for certain types of projects.  He said staff recently met with 
Jackson and Manchester townships about two projects: a sewer line and water line. The 
projects may meet the qualifications of the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund. 
 
Director Chuck Horner provided information on the following regulatory matters: 

• On August 15, 2018 staff accompanied Mullica Township officials to an Atlantic 
County Agriculture Development Board meeting regarding a commercial use that 
was established at a farm. After the Board was briefed, it determined that the Board 
did not have jurisdiction and it was a Pinelands Commission matter.  The matter 
was referred back to municipal court and is scheduled to be heard in October. 

• A development application was recently submitted to the Commission for the 
development of 360 dwelling units and a hotel in South Toms River.  A 
redevelopment plan that was certified by the Commission required that Pinelands 
Development Credits be used on 25% of the market rate units. 

 
Communications Officer Paul Leakan said that Drill Construction expects to be complete 
with their work around mid-October, at which point the fabricator can begin to install the 
exhibits. 

Update on Application Number 1990-0868.029 

ED Wittenberg said the Commission did not approve the Bass River Fire Tower public 
development application during its August 10, 208 meeting.  She said the NJDEP’s 
application proposes to clear non-native trees to maintain visibility at the fire tower.  She 



PC2-68 
 

said when the Commission fails to approve a public development application, the 
Comprehensive Management Plan states that the matter must be referred to the Office of 
Administrative Law (OAL). On August 17, 2018, the Division of Law sent a letter advising 
of the DAGs assigned to this matter.  On August 23, 2018, a letter was received from DAG 
Mark Collier, who is representing the NJDEP, requesting an extension of time. The 
extension, if approved, would place a hold on the matter being sent to OAL. 
 
Resolution to Retire into Closed Session 
DAG Heinzerling read a resolution to enter into closed session to provide attorney-client 
advice related to the Bass River Fire Tower matter.  

Commission Barr made a motion to enter into closed session. Commissioner Avery 
seconded the motion. The Commission agreed to retire into closed session by a vote of 12  
to 0, beginning at 9:54  a.m. 

Commissioner Rohan Green ended her participation from the meeting during closed 
session.  Commissioner Jannarone left the meeting at the end of closed session. 

Return to Open Session 
The Commission briefly entered back into open session at 11:43 a.m. 
 
ED Wittenberg said the Commissioners engaged in a lengthy discussion. The NJDEP’s   
request for an extension of time was granted.  She said Commissioners will provide their 
questions to her in writing, which will in turn be provided to the NJDEP. The NJDEP will 
answer the questions in writing and they will be discussed at a future Commission meeting.   
She advised that the record for Application Number 1990-0868.029 will remain closed. 
 
Chairman Earlen said the Commission needs to enter back into closed session to discuss 
another matter. 

Resolution to Retire into Closed Session 

DAG Velzy read a resolution to discuss pending litigation regarding Summerfields West 
and a potential settlement agreement.   

Commissioner Avery made a motion to enter into closed session. Commissioner Lohbauer 
seconded the motion. The Commission agreed to retire into closed session by a vote of 10 
to 0, beginning at 11:45 a.m. 

Return to Open Session 
The Commission entered back into open session at 11:49 a.m. 
 
DAG Velzy said that the Commission was briefed on Summerfields West during the closed 
session. He said the application is currently with the Office of Administrative Law. The 
applicant is seeking to develop a mobile home community in Monroe Township. He said 
the settlement agreement specifies that 3.75 Pinelands Development Credits must be 
purchased for application number 1981-0880.004. 
 



PC2-69 
 

Commissioner Avery made a motion to authorize a settlement agreement with 
Summerfields West.  Commissioner Lohbauer seconded the motion. All were in favor. 
 
Public Development Projects and Other Permit Matters 
Chairman Earlen presented a resolution recommending approval for the demolition of a 
commercial shopping center in Pemberton Township. 
 
Commissioner Prickett said he would be recusing from voting on this application. He left 
the dais. 
 
Commissioner Avery moved the adoption of a resolution Approving With Conditions an 
Application for Public Development (Application Number 1983-9146.005) (See Resolution 
# PC4-18-29).  Commissioner Lloyd seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Lohbauer said he was pleased that Pemberton Township would be removing 
the dilapidated structure. 
 
The Commission adopted the resolution by a vote of 9 to 0.  
 
Commissioner Prickett returned to the dais. 
 
Chairman Earlen presented a resolution recommending approval for the construction of 
recreational facilities at the George W. Ritter Recreation Complex in Waterford Township. 
 
Commissioner Lohbauer moved the adoption of a resolution Approving With Conditions an 
Application for Public Development (Application Number 1993-0465.003) (See Resolution 
# PC4-18-30).  Commissioner Barr seconded the motion. 
 
The Commission adopted the resolution by a vote of 10 to 0.  
 
Public Comment on Public Development Applications and Items where the record is open 
No one from the public spoke. 
 
Ordinances Not Requiring Commission Action 
Chairman Earlen asked if any Commissioners had questions regarding the ordinances not 
requiring Commission action: 
 

• Atlantic County Planning Advisory Board Resolution 2018-2 
• Barnegat Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan 
• Barnegat Township Ordinances 2018-15, 2018-16 & 2018-19 
• Buena Borough Ordinance 669 
• Corbin City Ordinance 4-2018 
• Galloway Township Ordinance 1995-2018 
• Lakehurst Borough Ordinance 2018-09 
• Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-015 
• Woodbine Borough Planning Board Resolution 4-8-18 



PC2-70 
 

• Woodbine Borough Ordinance 576-2018 
 
No members of the Commission had questions. 
 
Presentation 
The Permanent Land Protection presentation will be postponed until the October 12, 2018 
Commission meeting. 
 
Commissioner Galletta left the meeting at 11:45 a.m. 
 
General Public Comment 
Chairman Earlen reminded the public that the comment period for the Bass River Fire 
Tower application is closed and additional comments cannot be submitted. 
 
Jonathan Peters said the Commission should take a balanced approach regarding rules and 
regulations related to growing marijuana.  
 
Karl Swanseen of Bass River Township disagreed with the decision to allow the NJDEP to 
add to the record but not allow the public to comment. 
 
Chairman Earlen said NJDEP’s response to questions asked by Commissioners will be 
shared at a future Commission meeting. 
 
Carol Bitzberger of Bass River Township said she was disappointed that the public cannot 
add to the record. 
 
Jamie Zaccaria and Don Gant both said they would not be commenting since the Bass 
River Fire Tower application record is closed. 
 
Adjournment 
Commissioner Lohbauer said he regrets that the public cannot comment on the Bass River 
Fire Tower application.  He also said that he hopes this Commission can develop climate 
change policy. 
 
Commissioner Barr moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Lohbauer seconded the 
motion.  The Commission agreed to adjourn at 12:00 p.m.    
 
Certified as true and correct: 
 
_________________________________   Date:   September 27, 2018 
Jessica Noble, Executive Assistant 





 

!19839146.005! 

       August 23, 2018 

 

David Benedetti, PP AICP (via email) 

Pemberton Township 

500 Pemberton Browns Mills Road 

Pemberton, NJ 08068 

 

 Re: Application # 1983-9146.005 

  Block 775, Lot 19 

  Pemberton Township 

 

Dear Mr. Benedetti: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for demolition of an existing 40,680 

square foot commercial shopping center. Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development Application 

Report.  On behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands 

Commission approve the application with conditions at its September 14, 2018 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 

c: Secretary, Pemberton Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Pemberton Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Pemberton Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Burlington County Planning Board (via email) 

  

 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       August 23, 2018 

 

David Benedetti, PP AICP (via email) 

Pemberton Township 

500 Pemberton Browns Mills Road 

Pemberton, NJ 08068 

 

Application No.: 1983-9146.005 

   Block 775, Lot 19 

   Pemberton Township 

 

This application proposes demolition of an existing 40,680 square foot commercial shopping center, 50 

years old or older, located on the above referenced 6.4 acre parcel in Pemberton Township.   

 

The submitted Pinelands application form represents that the parcel is owned by Pemberton Township. 

The Township has provided a copy of a Final Judgement approved by the Superior Court of Burlington 

County determining that the Township has duly exercised its powers of eminent domain to acquire the 

parcel.  

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed demolition for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:  

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28) 

 

The parcel is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. The demolition of a building is permitted in 

the Pinelands Area.   

 

Cultural Resource Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.151) 

 

The Commission staff reviewed the application for evidence of cultural resources on the parcel. Based 

upon the lack of potential for significant cultural resources on the parcel, a cultural resource survey was 

not required. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notices. Notice to required land owners within 200 feet 



2 

of the above referenced parcel was completed on July 27, 2018. Newspaper public notice was completed 

on July 31, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on July 31, 

2018. The Commission’s public comment period for this application closed on August 10, 2018. No 

public comment was submitted to the Commission regarding this application.  

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

2. This application is for the proposed demolition only.  Any future development of the 

parcel shall be governed by Pemberton Township's certified land use ordinance and the 

CMP. 

3. Prior to any demolition, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed demolition conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is recommended 

that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed demolition subject to the above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on September 11, 2018 and include the 

following information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 





 

!19930465.003! 

       August 23, 2018 

 

William Richardson, Jr., Mayor (via email) 

Waterford Township 

2131 Auburn Avenue 

Atco, NJ 08004 

 

 Re: Application # 1993-0465.003 

  Block 1017, Lot 1 

  Waterford Township 

 

Dear Mayor Richardson: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for construction of recreational 

facilities at the George W. Ritter Recreation Complex. Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development 

Application Report.  On behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the 

Pinelands Commission approve the application with conditions at its September 14, 2018 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 

c: Secretary, Waterford Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Waterford Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Waterford Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Camden County Planning Board (via email) 

 John Helbig, PP, AICP (via email) 

  



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       August 23, 2018 

 

William Richardson, Jr., Mayor (via email) 

Waterford Township 

2131 Auburn Avenue 

Atco, NJ 08004 

 

Application No.: 1993-0465.003 

   Block 1017, Lot 1 

   Waterford Township 

 

This application proposes the construction of a basketball court, a hockey rink and a 7,650 square foot 

playground at the George W. Ritter Recreation Complex located on the above referenced 7.14 acre 

parcel in Waterford Township.   

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28) 

 

The parcel is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. The proposed recreational facilities are a 

permitted land use in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area.    

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The development subject of this application will be located over existing developed and maintained 

grassed areas. The proposed soil disturbance is limited to that which is necessary to accommodate the 

development.  

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  The applicant proposes to utilize a seed mixture which 

meets that recommendation. 

 

Stormwater Management Standards (N.J.A.C.7:50-6.84(a)6) 

 

The applicant has demonstrated that the development is consistent with the stormwater management 



2 

standards of the CMP. To meet the stormwater management standards, the application proposes to 

construct a stormwater infiltration basin on the parcel. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notices. Notice to required land owners within 200 feet 

of the above referenced parcel was completed on May 2, 2018. Newspaper public notice was completed 

on May 4, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on July 31, 

2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on August 10, 2018. No public comment was 

submitted to the Commission regarding this application.  

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of 13 sheets, prepared by Adams, Rehmann & Heggan and dated as 

follows: 

 

Sheets 1, 6 & 13 - April 2018; revised to July 13, 2018 

Sheets 2-4 & 7-12 - April 2018; revised to April 27, 2018 

Sheet 5 - April 2018; revised to June 15, 2018 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on September 11, 2018 and include the 

following information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 



 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION  
 

NO. PC4-18-_____________ 

 

TITLE:  Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (Application Number 

1982-2731.011) 

 

Commissioner _______________________________ moves and Commissioner_____________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed the Public Development Application Report and 

the recommendation of the Executive Director that the following application for Public Development be 

approved with conditions: 

 

1982-2731.011 

Applicant: Ocean County Board of Chosen Freeholders 

Municipality: Manchester Township 

Management Area: Pinelands Regional Growth Area 

Date of Report:  September 21, 2018 

Proposed Development: Construction of an 18,400 square foot bus garage, a 9,000 square 

foot office building, a 30,000 square foot warehouse and a 3.9 acre 

leaf composting facility 

 

WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 

Director’s recommendation has been received for this application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Conclusion of the Executive Director for the 

proposed development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the proposed public development 

conforms to the standards for approving an application for public development set forth in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.57 if the conditions recommended by the Executive Director are imposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force or 

effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes 

of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period and Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Application Number 1982-2731.011 for public 

development is hereby approved subject to the conditions recommended by the Executive Director. 

 



 

!19822731.011! 

       September 21, 2018 

 

Ernest Kuhlwein 

Ocean County Board of Chosen Freeholders 

PO Box 2191 

Toms River, NJ 08753 

 

 Re: Application # 1982-2731.011 

  Block 72, Lot 7 

  Manchester Township 

 

Dear Mr. Kuhlwein: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for construction of an 18,400 square 

foot bus garage, a 9,000 square foot office building, a 30,000 square foot two story warehouse and a 3.9 

acre leaf composting facility. Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development Application Report.  On 

behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission 

approve the application with conditions at its October 12, 2018 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

c: Secretary, Manchester Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Manchester Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Manchester Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Ocean County Planning Board (via email) 

 Steve Morey, CEP 

 Marian Petitt 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       September 21, 2018 

 

Ernest Kuhlwein 

Ocean County Board of Chosen Freeholders 

PO Box 2191 

Toms River, NJ 08753 

 

Application No.: 1982-2731.011 

   Block 72, Lot 7 

   Manchester Township 

 

This application proposes construction of an 18,400 square foot bus garage, a 9,000 square foot office 

building, a 30,000 square foot two story warehouse and a 3.9 acre leaf composting facility located on the 

above referenced 54.88 acre parcel in Manchester Township.  An existing Ocean County Road 

Department Garage facility is located on the parcel.     

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28) 

 

The parcel is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area.  The proposed development is a permitted 

land use in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. 

 

Wetlands Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.6) 

 

There are wetlands located on the above referenced parcel.  All development will be located at least 300 

feet from wetlands. 

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located within a forested area.  Approximately 14 acres of forest will 

be cleared to accommodate the proposed development.  The proposed clearing and soil disturbance is 

limited to that which is necessary to accommodate the proposed development. 

 



2 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  To stabilize disturbed areas, the applicant proposes to 

utilize a seed mixture which meets that recommendation. 

 

Threatened and Endangered Species Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.27 & 6.33) 

 

Three threatened and endangered (T&E) plant and animal species surveys were previously completed on 

an overall parcel that included the 54.88 acre parcel subject of this application. Two surveys were 

completed for residential development applications that included the 54.88 acre parcel subject of this 

application. A third survey for certain T&E plants was completed on the 54.88 acre parcel for the 

development of the existing County road department garage facility that is located on the parcel. Those 

surveys demonstrated that the 54.88 acre parcel does not contain habitat that is critical to the survival of 

any local population of T&E animal species or any local population of T&E plant species. 

 

Water Quality Standard (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.83) 

 

The proposed development will be serviced by public sanitary sewer. 

 

Stormwater Management Standards (N.J.A.C.7:50-6.84(a)6) 

 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed development is consistent with the stormwater 

management standards contained in the CMP.  To meet the stormwater management standards, the 

applicant will be enlarging an existing stormwater infiltration basin and constructing two underground 

stormwater infiltration trenches. 

 

Air Quality Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.94) 

 

The applicant has submitted information demonstrating that the proposed development is consistent with 

the air quality standards contained in the CMP.  

 

Cultural Resource Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.151) 

 

The Commission staff reviewed the application for evidence of cultural resources on the parcel. Based 

upon the lack of potential for significant cultural resources on the parcel, a cultural resource survey was 

not required. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notices. Notice to required land owners within 200 feet 

of the above referenced parcel was completed on May 25, 2018. Newspaper public notice was 

completed on May 31, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website 

on September 4, 2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on September 14, 2018. The 

Commission received one public comment regarding this application. 

 

Commenter #1: The commenter requested a copy of the Executive Director’s findings and 

conclusion. 

 

Staff Response: The commenter will receive a copy of this report. 

 



3 

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of 22 sheets, prepared by Mott MacDonald, all sheets dated May 

2018 and revised to July 2018.  

 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received by the Commission’s office no later than 4:00 PM on October 9, 2018. The appeal must include 

the following information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 



 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION  
 

NO. PC4-18-_____________ 

 

TITLE:  Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (Application Number 

2001-0236.001) 

 

Commissioner _______________________________ moves and Commissioner_____________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed the Public Development Application Report and 

the recommendation of the Executive Director that the following application for Public Development be 

approved with conditions: 

 

2001-0236.001 

Applicant: Monroe Township 

Municipality: Monroe Township 

Management Area: Pinelands Regional Growth Area 

Date of Report:  September 21, 2018 

Proposed Development: Construction of four recreational fields and a 193 space parking lot 

 

WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 

Director’s recommendation has been received for this application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Conclusion of the Executive Director for the 

proposed development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the proposed public development 

conforms to the standards for approving an application for public development set forth in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.57 if the conditions recommended by the Executive Director are imposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force or 

effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes 

of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period and Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Application Number 2001-0236.001 for public 

development is hereby approved subject to the conditions recommended by the Executive Director. 

 



 

!20010236.001! 

       September 21, 2018 

Kevin Heydel, Business Administrator 

Monroe Township 

125 Virginia Avenue 

Williamstown, NJ 08094 

 

 Re: Application # 2001-0236.001 

  Block 13001, Lots 16 & 28 

  Monroe Township 

 

Dear Mr. Heydel: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for construction of four recreational 

fields and a 193 space parking lot. Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development Application Report.  On 

behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission 

approve the application with conditions at its October 12, 2018 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 

c: Secretary, Monroe Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Monroe Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Monroe Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Gloucester County Planning Board (via email) 

 John Helbig, PP, AICP (via email) 

 Eleanor Pontano 

 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       September 21, 2018 

 

Kevin Heydel, Business Administrator 

Monroe Township 

125 Virginia Avenue 

Williamstown, NJ 08094 

 

Application No.: 2001-0236.001 

   Block 13001, Lots 16 & 28 

   Monroe Township 

 

This application proposes construction of four recreational fields and a 193 space parking lot on the 

above referenced 51.91 acre parcel in Monroe Township.  The Township’s Owens Park recreational 

facility is located on Lot 28. 

 

The proposed improvements also include the development of a 6,400 linear foot, ten foot wide, 

pedestrian path and a 1.77 acre dog park. 

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28) 

 

The parcel is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. The proposed recreational facilities are a 

permitted land use in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area.    

 

Wetlands Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.7) 

 

There are wetlands located on the parcel. The applicant has demonstrated that if the proposed 

development maintains a 240 foot buffer to wetlands, the proposed development will not result in a 

significant adverse impact on the wetlands. 

  

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located over existing agricultural fields, maintained grassed areas, 

farmland and wooded areas. Approximately 2.84 acres of forest will be cleared to accommodate the 



2 

proposed development.  The proposed clearing and soil disturbance is limited to that which is necessary 

to accommodate the development.  

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  The applicant proposes to utilize a seed mixture which 

meets that recommendation. 

 

Water Quality (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.83) 

 

The applicant has represented that the existing Owens Park recreational facility is serviced by public 

sanitary sewer. 

 

Stormwater Management Standards (N.J.A.C.7:50-6.84(a)6) 

 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed development is consistent with the CMP stormwater 

management standards. To meet the stormwater management standards, the applicant will be 

constructing two stormwater infiltration basins and six underground stormwater infiltration trenches. 

 

Air Quality Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.94) 

 

The applicant has submitted information demonstrating that the proposed development is consistent with 

the CMP air quality standards.  

 

Cultural Resource Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.151) 

 

A cultural resource survey was prepared for this application. It was determined that there were no 

cultural resources eligible for Pinelands designation within the project area.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notices. Notice to required land owners within 200 feet 

of the above referenced parcel was completed on March 12, 2018. Newspaper public notice was 

completed on March 17, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s 

website on September 4, 2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on September 14, 

2018. The Commission received one public comment regarding this application. 

 

Commenter #1: The commenter is concerned about the impact of the proposed development on 

Pinelands habitat and the environment, the loss of open space, the impacts of the 

proposed development on groundwater and increased impervious surface limiting 

groundwater recharge. The commenter also expressed a concern regarding the 

development of recreational facilities on a parcel that is included in the New 

Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) Green Acres Program. 

The commenter is further concerned with the stormwater management facilities 

breeding mosquitos and the potential for people utilizing the park to trespass onto 

their immediately adjacent farm.        

 

Staff Response: The Commission staff appreciates the commenter’s interest in the Pinelands Area.  

The proposed development is a permitted land use based upon the regulations 

contained in the CMP. The proposed development also meets the environmental 



3 

standards of the CMP, including the threatened and endangered species protection 

standards The applicant’s proposed stormwater management plan demonstrates 

consistency with the stormwater management standards contained in the Monroe 

Township land use ordinance and the CMP. In part, the stormwater management 

standards require infiltration on the parcel of the increase in stormwater runoff.  

 

The applicant submitted information indicating that the original proposal for the 

parcel included the development of an indoor recreational building and that the 

parcel was purchased using funding from the NJDEP Green Acre Program.  The 

construction of an indoor recreational building would have required a parkland 

diversion from the NJDEP Green Acres Program.  The Monroe Township Council 

held a public hearing for the proposed parkland diversion on July 22, 2013.  The 

applicant ultimately decided not to pursue the construction of an indoor 

recreational building. 

 

The maintenance of the proposed stormwater management facilities is the 

responsibility of Monroe Township. The commenter may wish to discuss her 

stormwater facility maintenance concerns with an appropriate municipal official.   

 

The Commission staff understands the commenter’s concern regarding trespass 

on her property. The regulations in the CMP do not address trespass. The 

commenter may also wish to discuss this concern with an appropriate Township 

official.  

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of 16 sheets, prepared by Adams, Rehman & Heggan Associates, all 

sheets dated February 2018 and revised to August 2, 2018. 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

5. All development, including clearing and land disturbance, shall be located at least 240 

feet from wetlands. 

6. Appropriate measures shall be taken during construction to preclude sedimentation from 

entering wetlands and shall be maintained in place until all development has been 

completed and the area has been stabilized. 

 

 



4 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on October 9, 2018 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 

  



 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 



 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION  
 

NO. PC4-18-_____________ 

 

TITLE:  Approving With Conditions an Application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance (Application 

Number 1985-0713.002) 

 

Commissioner _______________________________ moves and Commissioner_____________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed each of the Findings of Fact, Conclusion and the 

recommendation of the Executive Director that the following application for Waiver of Strict 

Compliance be approved with conditions: 

 

1985-0713.002 

Applicant: Arthur and Brenda Allen 

Municipality: Southampton Township 

Management Area: Pinelands Agricultural Production Area 

Date of Report:  September 21, 2018 

Proposed Development: Single family dwelling 

 

WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 

Director’s recommendation has been received for this application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Findings of Fact and Conclusion of the 

Executive Director for the requested Waiver of Strict Compliance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the requested Waiver conforms to the 

standards for approving an application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance based on extraordinary 

hardship as set forth in N.J.A.C 7:50-4.62, N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63 and N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65 if the conditions 

recommended by the Executive Director are imposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force or 

effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes 

of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period and Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Application Number 1985-0713.002 for a Waiver of 

Strict Compliance is hereby approved subject to the conditions recommended by the Executive 

Director. 

 



 

!19850713.002! 

REPORT ON AN APPLICATION FOR A WAIVER OF STRICT COMPLIANCE 

 

       September 21, 2018 

 

Arthur and Brenda Allen (via email) 

10 Allen Court 

Tabernacle, NJ 08088 

 

 Re: Application # 1985-0713.002 

  Block 1702, Lot 26 

  Southampton Township 

 

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Allen: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of the above referenced application for a Waiver of 

Strict Compliance (Waiver) proposing the development of one single family dwelling on the above 

referenced parcel. Based upon the facts and conclusions contained in this Report, on behalf of the 

Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the 

application with conditions at its October 12, 2018 meeting. 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

This application is for the development of a single family dwelling serviced by an onsite septic system   

on the above referenced 40 acre parcel in Southampton Township.  The parcel is located in a Pinelands 

Agricultural Production Area and in Southampton Township’s Agricultural Production zoning district. 

In this zoning district, Southampton Township’s certified land use ordinances permit a proposed single 

family dwelling at a gross density of one unit per 10 acres provided that the dwelling is accessory to an 

active agricultural operation.     

 

The applicant is proposing to develop a single family dwelling accessory to an existing active berry 

agricultural operation on the parcel. The proposed dwelling will be occupied by an operator or an 

employee of the farm actively engaged in and essential to the berry agricultural operation.  The applicant 

has submitted information demonstrating that the parcel qualifies for agricultural assessment.  The 

applicant has submitted a farm management plan demonstrating that the parcel will be farmed as a unit 

unto itself.  A dwelling accessory to an active agricultural operation is a permitted use in a Pinelands 

Agricultural Production Area pursuant to the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP, 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.24(a)2).   

 

 

 



2 

A Waiver for the development of a single family dwelling accessory to an agricultural operation on the 

parcel was approved by the Pinelands Commission on May 12, 1995.  A development application for the 

dwelling authorized by that Waiver was never completed with the Commission. All necessary 

construction permits were not received for the proposed development by May 12, 2000. Therefore, the 

Waiver expired on May 12, 2000, five years after approval of the Waiver, in accordance with the 

provisions of the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.70(c)).  

 

A second application for a Waiver for the development of a single family dwelling accessory to an 

agricultural operation on the parcel was approved by the Commission on April 12, 2013. A development 

application for the proposed dwelling was subsequently completed with the Commission. On September 

28, 2017, the Commission issued a Certificate of Filing for the proposed single family dwelling. All 

necessary construction permits for the dwelling were not received by April 12, 2018. Therefore, the 

Waiver expired on April 12, 2018, five years after approval of the Waiver, in accordance with the 

provisions of the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.70(c)).  

 

Accordingly, this new application for a Waiver for the parcel has been completed.   

 

On May 30, 2013, the Commission issued a Third Amended Letter of Interpretation (LOI) #382 

allocating 0.50 Pinelands Development Credits (PDCs) to the parcel (App. No. 1985-0713.001). That 

LOI reserved the right to construct one single family dwelling on the parcel. Subsequently, the 0.50 

PDCs allocated to this parcel were severed and the requisite PDC deed restriction was imposed.  

 

The parcel has been site inspected by several members of the Commission staff.  In addition, the 

appropriate resource capability maps and data available to the staff have been reviewed. 

 

The Burlington County Soil Survey indicates that there are Pocomoke and Klej soils on the parcel.  

These soils have a seasonal high water table of less than 5 feet below the natural ground surface.  A total 

of three soil borings were previously performed by the applicant’s consultant and a member of the 

Commission staff for the original Waiver application.  Those borings revealed a seasonal high water 

table of less than 5 feet below the natural ground surface at the location of the borings.  The applicant 

has submitted no information to demonstrate that the septic system could be located in an area on the 

parcel where the seasonal high water table is at least 5 feet below the natural ground surface.  The 

applicant previously submitted a soil boring as part of the Waiver application approved on May 12, 1995 

demonstrating that the seasonal high water table at the proposed location of the septic system is at least 2 

feet below the natural ground surface.   Since the available information indicates the seasonal high water 

table on the parcel is less than 5 feet below the natural ground surface, the applicant is requesting a 

Waiver from the seasonal high water table requirement contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84(a)4iv. 

 

Portions of the parcel are a hardwood swamp type wetlands and a pitch pine lowlands type wetlands as   

defined in the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.5(a)2 and 3). The remainder of the parcel is an active blueberry 

field located in wetland soils as defined in the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.3). Any development of the parcel 

would be located within 300 feet of these wetlands.  The applicant has submitted no information to 

demonstrate that the proposed development would not cause a significant adverse impact on the 

wetlands.  Based on the quality and location of the wetlands, the proposed development will cause a 

significant adverse impact on the wetlands. As there will be a significant adverse impact on wetlands 

located within 300 feet of the proposed development, the applicant is requesting a Waiver from the 

buffer to wetlands requirement contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.14. 

 



3 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b)) requires that to qualify for a Waiver to develop a single family 

dwelling in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area,  no development, except for development 

otherwise permitted in wetlands and wetlands buffers by the CMP, shall be located within 50 feet of 

wetlands. The proposed dwelling will utilize an existing dirt driveway. That existing driveway is located 

in wetlands and the required buffer to wetlands. The applicant has demonstrated that all proposed 

development can be located at least 50 feet from wetlands.   

 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b)8) also requires that for an applicant to qualify for a Waiver to develop 

a single family dwelling in in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area, it must be demonstrated that a 

septic system could be located in an area on the parcel where the seasonal high water table is at least 2 

feet below the natural ground surface and not within 50 feet of any surface water body.  The applicant 

has demonstrated that a proposed septic system could be located in an area on the parcel where the 

seasonal high water table is at least 2 feet below the natural ground surface and not within 50 feet of any 

surface water body.  

 

The parcel includes all contiguous land in common ownership on or after January 14, 1981. The 

proposed single family dwelling will be the sole principal use of the parcel. The development of a single 

family dwelling on the parcel will not require any lot area or residential density variances pursuant to 

Southampton Township’s certified land use ordinances. A single family dwelling can be developed on 

the parcel without violating any of the substantial impairment and consistency criteria contained in the 

CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65) if the conditions recommended below are imposed. 

 

Only if the parcel is developed in accordance with the conditions recommended below will the adverse 

impacts on the wetlands and groundwater quality be minimized. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

The applicant provided the requisite public notice. Newspaper public notice was completed on August 2, 

2018. Public notice to all property owners within 200 feet of the parcel was completed on August 7, 

2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on August 21, 2018. 

The Commission’s public comment period closed on September 14, 2018. No public comment was 

submitted to the Pinelands Commission regarding the application. 

 

CONCLUSION 

 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62 sets forth the standards which must be met before a Waiver can be approved.  

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(a) requires that for an application to be approved based on extraordinary hardship,  

the applicant must demonstrate that the conditions of either N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a) or (b) have been met. 

 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a) sets forth five conditions which must be met for an applicant to qualify for an 

extraordinary hardship pursuant to that subsection. 

 

The first condition is that the only relief sought is from one or more of the standards contained in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-6 for certain specified development.  One of the specified categories of development is a 

single family dwelling accessory to an active agricultural operation in an Agricultural Production Area 

as set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.24(a)2. 

 



4 

The applicant is seeking to develop a single family dwelling accessory to an active agricultural operation 

in an Agricultural Production Area that meets all the criteria contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.24(a)2.  As a 

result, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)1ix. 

 

The second condition is that the parcel includes all contiguous land in common ownership on or after 

January 14, 1981, including all lands which are contiguous as a result of ownership of other contiguous 

lands.  Since the parcel includes all such contiguous land, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)2. 

 

The third condition is that the proposed use will be the sole principal use on the entire contiguous parcel, 

except as expressly provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.1(c).  Since the proposed single family dwelling will be 

accessory to the existing berry agricultural use, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.63(a)3. 

 

The fourth condition is that all necessary municipal lot area and density variances have been obtained if 

the parcel is located in a municipality whose master plan and land use ordinances have been certified by 

the Pinelands Commission.  Southampton Township’s master plan and land use ordinance have been 

certified by the Pinelands Commission.  The certified ordinance does not require a municipal lot area or 

density variance.  As a result, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)4. 

 

The fifth condition is that the development of the parcel will not violate any of the criteria contained in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b).  N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(a) precludes the granting of a Waiver which permits a parcel 

to be developed unless such development will be consistent with the purposes and provisions of the 

Pinelands Protection Act, the Federal Act and the CMP and will not result in a substantial impairment of 

the resources of the Pinelands Area.  N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b) sets forth the circumstances which do not 

comply with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(a).  With the conditions recommended below, the proposed 

development will not violate any of the circumstances contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b). As a result, 

the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)5. 
 

Since the applicant meets all the conditions set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a), the applicant has 

demonstrated that an extraordinary hardship exists pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(a). 

 

As required by the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(c)), the proposed dwelling will not involve trespass or 

create a public or private nuisance by being materially detrimental or injurious to other property or 

improvements in the area in which the parcel is located, increase the danger of fire or endanger public 

safety.   

 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(d)) requires that the Waiver only grant the minimum relief necessary to 

relieve the extraordinary hardship. The proposed single family dwelling is the minimum relief necessary 

to relieve the extraordinary hardship which has been shown to exist.   

 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(d)1i requires the reduction, as set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b)3, of any PDCs 

allocated to the parcel pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b). N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b)3iii requires that the 

PDC entitlement for a parcel be reduced by 0.25 PDC for each reserved right to build a dwelling unit on 

the parcel. On May 30, 2013, the Commission issued a Third Amended Letter of Interpretation (LOI) 

#382 allocating 0.50 Pinelands Development Credits (PDCs) to the parcel (App. No. 1985-0713.001). 

That LOI reserved the right to construct one single family dwelling on the parcel. Subsequently, the 0.50 

PDCs allocated to this parcel were severed and the PDC deed restriction imposed.  

 



5 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(d)1iii requires the acquisition and redemption of 0.25 PDCs whenever the Waiver 

provides relief from one or more of the standards of N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.  The applicant is obtaining a 

Waiver from the seasonal high water table  and minimum buffer to wetlands requirements contained in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84(a)4iv and N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.14. The applicant purchased and redeemed 0.25 PDCs on 

March 22, 2018 for the prior Waiver that subsequently expired.   

  

With the conditions recommended below, the applicant meets the requirements contained in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.62(c). 

 

To meet the requirements of the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62, N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a) and N.J.A.C. 7:50-

4.65), the Commission staff has determined that the parcel must be developed in accordance with the 

following conditions: 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to the 

site plan prepared by Environmental Consulting of Southern New Jersey, dated April 12, 

2012 and last revised February 14, 2013. 

 

2. All development associated with the single family dwelling, including clearing and land 

disturbance, except for the existing dirt driveway, shall maintain the maximum feasible 

buffer to wetlands but not less than 50 feet. 

 

3. Silt fencing, hay bales or other appropriate measures shall be installed prior to construction to 

preclude sedimentation from entering wetlands. 

 

4. Sufficient dry wells or comparable alternative shall be installed to contain all stormwater 

runoff from the dwelling. 

 

5. Access to the single family dwelling shall be from the existing dirt driveway.  Other than 

normal and customary repair and maintenance, the existing dirt driveway shall not be 

improved without first obtaining any necessary New Jersey Department of Environmental 

Protection Freshwater Wetlands Permit. Any proposed improvements to the driveway shall 

not result in an impermeable surface.  

 

6. The septic system shall be located in an area where the seasonal high water table is at least 2 

feet below the natural ground surface.  Sufficient fill shall be placed in the area of the septic 

system to meet the requirements of NJDEP, Standards for Individual Subsurface Sewage 

Disposal Systems (N.J.A.C 7:9A). 

 

7. Except as provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.1(c), the sole principal use of the parcel shall be 

agriculture, forestry, and the single family dwelling proposed as accessory to the agricultural 

use. Any future development of the parcel shall be accessory to that sole principal use. 

 

8. This Waiver shall expire October 10, 2023 unless all necessary construction permits have 

been issued by that date.  The Waiver shall also expire if any construction permit is allowed 

to expire or lapse after October 10, 2023 or if any renewal or extension of any permit or 

approval or issuance of a new construction permit is necessary after that date. 

 

9. A copy of a recorded deed containing all of the above conditions shall be submitted to the 

Pinelands Commission prior to Commission issuance of a letter advising that any submitted 



6 

municipal or county permit or approval may take effect. The deed shall specify that the 

conditions are being imposed pursuant to a September 21, 2018 Pinelands Commission 

Report on an Application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance (“Waiver Report”) for App. No. 

1985-0713.002. The deed shall indicate that the conditions previously required by the March 

22, 2013 Waiver Report for App. No. 19850713.002, approved by the Pinelands Commission 

on April 12, 2013, have since expired and are superseded by the conditions required by the 

September 21, 2018 Waiver Report approved by the Pinelands Commission on October 12, 

2018. The deed shall also indicate that the conditions are enforceable by the Pinelands 

Commission, Southampton Township and any other party of interest. 

 

With the above conditions, the applicant qualifies for a Waiver from the requirements of N.J.A.C. 7:50-

6.14 and 7:50-6.84(a)4iv.   

 

Since the applicant meets the provisions of N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62, N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a) and N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.65 for the development of one single family dwelling accessory to an active agricultural 

operation on the parcel, it is recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the requested 

Waiver of Strict Compliance subject to the above conditions. 

 

APPEAL 
 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the right to appeal this recommendation in 

accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest 

sufficient to require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by 

someone meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on October 9, 2018 and must include the 

following information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

4. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the determination of the 

Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of Administrative Law for a 

hearing. 

 

Recommended for Approval by: ___________________________________________________ 

             Charles M. Horner, P.P., Director of Regulatory Programs 

 
c:  Secretary, Southampton Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Southampton Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Southampton Township Environmental Commission (via email) 



7 

 Secretary, Burlington County Planning Board (via email) 

 Burlington County Health Department (via email) 

 Suze Brandt (via email) 

  

 



 

!19823054.080! 

       September 13, 2018 

 

Jack O'Connor (via email) 

Pine Barrens Adventure Camp, LLC 

321 Osborn Avenue 

Point Pleasant, NJ 08742 

 

 Re: Application # 1982-3054.080 

  Pine Barrens Adventure Camp 

  September 15 & 16, 2018 

  Bass River, Little Egg Harbor, 

  Mullica, Stafford 

  & Washington Townships 

   

Dear Mr. O’Connor: 

 

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.143(a) of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan, the completion of 

your application has resulted in the issuance of the enclosed Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approval.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact Brian Szura of our staff. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 for Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 
Enc: Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approval 

 

c:  Mullica Township Clerk (via email) 

 Bass River Township Clerk (via email) 

 Washington Township Clerk (via email) 

 Little Egg Harbor Township Clerk (via email) 

 Stafford Township Clerk (via email) 

 Robert Auermuller, Superintendent, NJDEP Division of Parks and Forestry (via email) 

 Dave Robbins (via email) 

  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

                                             Charles M. Horner, P.P.                                  Date 

Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

 
Please see reverse side for additional information and conditions. 

Sean W. Earlen 
Chairman 

 
Nancy Wittenberg 
Executive Director 

 

New Jersey Pinelands Commission 

PO Box 359 

New Lisbon, NJ 08064 

(609) 894-7300 

 

 

OFF-ROAD VEHICLE EVENT 

ROUTE MAP APPROVAL #1333 
 

Application #: 1982-3054.080 

Applicant: Pine Barrens Adventure Camp, LLC 

Event Name: Pine Barrens Adventure Camp 

Event Date: September 15 & 16, 2018 

Municipalities: Bass River, Little Egg Harbor, Mullica, Stafford & Washington Townships 

Management Area: Agricultural Production Area, Forest Area, Pinelands Village, Preservation Area District, Special Agricultural Production Area 

 

Lands Utilized 

Bass River, Penn and Wharton State Forests 

 

Approved Route Map 

Received in electronic format on July 25, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

Philip D. Murphy 
Governor 

 
Sheila Y. Oliver 
Lt. Governor 

September 13, 2018 



 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

� One route beginning and ending at 3616 Nesco Road 

� 60 miles 

 

CONDITIONS 

 

� No deviation from the Approved Route Map shall occur without prior 

written approval from the Commission. 

� No private lands shall be utilized without owner permission. 

� No ORV event shall run until all necessary permits, approvals and 

authorizations have been obtained. 

� In the event of cancellation or postponement, the Pinelands 

Commission shall be notified of the new date. A copy of the new 

insurance policy as well as documentation that the municipalities, the 

State Police, the State Forests, and any private land owners have been 

notified must also be submitted. 

 

 



 

!19823054.081! 

       September 20, 2018 

 

Jack O'Connor (via email) 

Pine Barrens Adventure Camp, LLC 

321 Osborn Avenue 

Point Pleasant, NJ 08742 

 

 Re: Application # 1982-3054.081 

  Pine Barrens Adventure Camp 

  September 22 and 23, 2018 

  Bass River, Little Egg Harbor, 

  Mullica, Stafford 

  & Washington Townships 

   

Dear Mr. O’Connor: 

 

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.143(a) of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan, the completion of 

your application has resulted in the issuance of the enclosed Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approval.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact Brian Szura of our staff. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 for Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 
Enc: Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approval 

 

c:  Mullica Township Clerk (via email) 

 Bass River Township Clerk (via email) 

 Washington Township Clerk (via email) 

 Little Egg Harbor Township Clerk (via email) 

 Stafford Township Clerk (via email) 

 Tom Keck, Regional Superintendent, NJ State Park Service - Southern Region (via email) 

 Dave Robbins (via email) 

  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

                                             Charles M. Horner, P.P.                                  Date 

Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

 
Please see reverse side for additional information and conditions. 

Sean W. Earlen 
Chairman 

 
Nancy Wittenberg 
Executive Director 

 

New Jersey Pinelands Commission 

PO Box 359 

New Lisbon, NJ 08064 

(609) 894-7300 

 

 

OFF-ROAD VEHICLE EVENT 

ROUTE MAP APPROVAL #1335 
 

Application #: 1982-3054.081 

Applicant: Pine Barrens Adventure Camp, LLC 

Event Name: Pine Barrens Adventure Camp 

Event Date: September 22 and 23, 2018 

Municipalities: Bass River, Little Egg Harbor, Mullica, Stafford & Washington Townships 

Management Area: Agricultural Production Area, Forest Area, Pinelands Village, Preservation Area District, Special Agricultural Production Area 

 

Lands Utilized 

Bass River, Penn and Wharton State Forests 

 

Approved Route Map 

Received in electronic format on July 25, 2018 

 

 

Philip D. Murphy 
Governor 

 
Sheila Y. Oliver 
Lt. Governor 

September 20, 2018 



 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

� One route beginning and ending at 3616 Nesco Road 

� 60 miles 

 

CONDITIONS 

 

� No deviation from the Approved Route Map shall occur without prior 

written approval from the Commission. 

� No private lands shall be utilized without owner permission. 

� No ORV event shall run until all necessary permits, approvals and 

authorizations have been obtained. 

� In the event of cancellation or postponement, the Pinelands 

Commission shall be notified of the new date. A copy of the new 

insurance policy as well as documentation that the municipalities, the 

State Police, the State Forests, and any private land owners have been 

notified must also be submitted. 

 

 



 

Pending Public Development and Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications  
accepting public comment at the October 12, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Public Development Applications 
 
Application No. 2018-0152.001 – Galloway Township 
Received on: October 1, 2018 
Project: Construction of 300 linear feet of sanitary sewer main within the Atlantic Avenue right-of-way 
Municipality: Galloway Township 
 
 
Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications 
 
Application No. 2016-0115.001 – Baldwin 
Received on: September 2, 2016 
Project: Single family dwelling 
Municipality: Buena Vista Township 
Block 3003, Lot 14 
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 

NO. PC4-18-_____________ 
 

TITLE: Issuing an Order to Certify the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 
and 1994-2018 of Galloway Township 

Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 
seconds the motion that: 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, on March 6, 1987, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land Use 
Ordinances of the Township of Galloway; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-87-19 of the Pinelands Commission specified that any amendment to the 
Township’s certified Master Plan and Land Use Ordinances be submitted to the Executive Director in 
accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 (Submission and Review of Amendments to Certified Master Plans 
and Land Use Ordinances) of the Comprehensive Management Plan to determine if said amendment 
raises a substantial issue with respect to conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive Management 
Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-87-19 further specified that any such amendment shall only become 
effective as provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 of the Comprehensive Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 3, 2018, the Galloway Township Planning Board adopted Resolution 6A-2018, 
approving the Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, on August 14, 2018, Galloway Township adopted Ordinance 1993-2018, amending 
Chapter 233 (Land Management) of the Township’s Code by adopting affordable housing requirements 
for purposes of implementing the recommendations of the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan;  and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 14, 2018, Galloway Township also adopted Ordinance 1994-2018, approving a 
redevelopment plan for the Nantucket Redevelopment Area that includes increased residential densities 
and requirements for the provision of affordable housing and use of Pinelands Development Credits; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission received certified copies of Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-
2018 on August 16, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission received a certified and complete copy of the 2018 Housing 
Element and Fair Share Plan on August 24, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, by letter dated August 27, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that the 
2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 would require 
formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing to receive testimony on the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan 
and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 was duly advertised, noticed and held on September 12, 2018 
at the Richard J. Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 9:30 a.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has found that the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and 
Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 are consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 
Comprehensive Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has submitted a report to the Commission recommending issuance 
of an order to certify that Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and 
Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 are in conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive 
Management Plan; and 
 



 2

WHEREAS, the Commission’s CMP Policy and Implementation Committee has reviewed the 
Executive Director’s report and has recommended that the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan 
and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 be certified; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has duly considered all public testimony submitted to the 
Commission concerning the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 
1994-2018 and has reviewed the Executive Director’s report; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission accepts the recommendation of the Executive Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force 
or effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the 
minutes of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 
expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 
effective upon such approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that  

 
1. An Order is hereby issued to certify that Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair 

Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 are in conformance with the Pinelands 
Comprehensive Management Plan.  

 
2. Any additional amendments to Galloway Township’s certified Master Plan and Land Use 

Ordinances shall be submitted to the Executive Director in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 
to determine if said amendments raise a substantial issue with respect to the Comprehensive 
Management Plan. Any such amendment shall become effective only as provided in N.J.A.C. 
7:50-3.45.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     
Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 
Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 
   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 
Executive Director  Chairman 

 



 

      
REPORT ON GALLOWAY TOWNSHIP’S 2018 HOUSING ELEMENT  

AND FAIR SHARE PLAN AND ORDINANCES 1993-2018 AND 1994-2018 
 

       September 28, 2018 
 
 
Galloway Township 
300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road 
Galloway, NJ 08205 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

I. Background 
 
The Township of Galloway is located in the southeastern portion of the Pinelands Area, in Atlantic 
County. Pinelands municipalities that abut Galloway Township include Port Republic City, Egg Harbor 
City and the Townships of Hamilton, Egg Harbor and Mullica in Atlantic County, as well as 
Washington and Bass River Townships in Burlington County.  

  
On March 6, 1987, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land Use Ordinances 
of Galloway Township. 
 
On May 3, 2018, the Galloway Township Planning Board adopted Resolution 6A-2018, approving the 
Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan.   
 
On August 14, 2018, Galloway Township adopted Ordinance 1993-2018, amending Chapter 233 (Land 
Management) of the Township’s Code by adopting affordable housing requirements for purposes of 
implementing the recommendations of the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan.  
 
On August 14, 2018, Galloway Township also adopted Ordinance 1994-2018, approving a 
redevelopment plan for the Nantucket Redevelopment Area that includes increased residential densities 
and requirements for the provision of affordable housing and use of Pinelands Development Credits. 
The Nantucket Redevelopment Area is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. 
 
The Pinelands Commission received certified copies of Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 on 
August 16, 2018 and a certified and complete copy of the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan on 
August 24, 2018. 
 



2 
 

By letter dated August 27, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that the 2018 Housing 
Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 would require formal review 
and approval by the Pinelands Commission. 
 
 
II.  Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances 
 
The following master plan and ordinance amendments have been submitted to the Pinelands 
Commission for certification: 
    
 * The 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan of Galloway Township, adopted by the 

Planning Board on May 3, 2018;  
 
 * Ordinance 1993-2018, amending Chapter 233 (Land Management) of the Code of 

Galloway Township, introduced on July 10, 2018 and adopted on August 14, 2018; and 
 
 * Ordinance 1994-2018, adopting the Nantucket Redevelopment Plan, introduced on July 

10, 2018 and adopted on August 14, 2018.  
 
These amendments have been reviewed to determine whether they conform with the standards for 
certification of municipal master plans and land use ordinances as set out in N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39 of the 
Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan. The findings from this review are presented below. The 
numbers used to designate the respective items correspond to the numbers used to identify the standards 
in N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39.  
 
 
1. Natural Resource Inventory 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
2. Required Provisions of Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances Relating to Development 

Standards 
 
Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan contains updated data and 
analysis on the Township’s current and projected demographic, housing stock, and employment 
characteristics as well as an updated Fair Share Plan for the cumulative period 1987-2025. The 
Township’s Fair Share Plan indicates a rehabilitation obligation of 180 units, a prior round 
obligation of 328 units and a third round prospective need of 884 units. Also included in the Fair 
Share Plan are detailed descriptions of the residential development projects, both completed and 
anticipated, that address the municipality’s obligation. In the Pinelands Area, these projects 
include several that have been fully constructed, two that have been approved by the 
Commission (Heritage Village and Blue Heron Pines) and one (Nantucket) that is the subject of 
a newly recommended redevelopment plan. The Fair Share Plan further recommends the 
adoption of an ordinance to require that certain housing developments in the Pinelands Regional 
Growth Area provide a 20% set-aside for affordable housing units. These recommendations 
reflect the terms of a 2018 settlement agreement between Galloway Township and Fair Share 
Housing Center.  
 



3 
 

Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 adopt amendments necessary to implement the 
recommendations of the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan.  
 
Ordinance 1993-2018 amends Chapter 233 (Land Management) of the Code of Galloway 
Township by creating a new Article XII, entitled “Affordable Housing”. The new Article XII 
includes provisions relating to rehabilitation, accessory apartments, new construction guidelines, 
affirmative marketing, occupancy standards and other administrative and enforcement matters 
related to affordable housing. Ordinance 1993-2018 also adopts affordable housing set-aside 
requirements applicable to residential development in the Township’s Regional Growth Area, 
Pinelands Villages and Pinelands Town area. Specifically, a 20% set-aside is required for all 
residential projects of five or more units and all mixed-use projects containing five or more 
residential units.  All such development will continue to be subject to the currently certified 
zoning in these areas. Permitted densities and residential zoning capacity remain unchanged.   
 
Ordinance 1994-2018 adopts a Redevelopment Plan for an area identified as the “White Horse 
Pike Corridor Phase 4A”.  The new Redevelopment Area, also known as the Nantucket 
Redevelopment Area, encompasses approximately 60 acres within the Township’s Regional 
Growth Area.  It is located on the north side of Route 30, adjacent to the Pinelands Village of 
Pomona (see Exhibit #1).  All lands in the redevelopment area are currently included in the 
Township’s HC-2 (Highway Commercial) District where a wide variety of nonresidential uses is 
permitted.  In addition, age-restricted housing is permitted as a conditional use in the HC-2 
District at a density of 9.5 units per acre on parcels of at least 15 acres in size. This conditional 
use was added to the HC-2 District many years ago but has thus far not resulted in the 
development of any new housing units. With the exception of one existing commercial use, all 
lands included in the redevelopment area are vacant. 
 
The Nantucket Redevelopment Plan is intended to encourage mixed use development that will 
provide new residential and commercial opportunities in Galloway Township and revitalize the 
White Horse Pike corridor.  To that end, Ordinance 1994-2018 permits mixed use development 
in the Nantucket Redevelopment Area, consisting of market multi-family and affordable multi-
family residential development and community commercial/office uses. Maximum residential 
density is 10 units per acre, just slightly higher than the 9.5 units per acre currently allowed in 
the underlying HC-2 District.  The ordinance also requires that 20% of all units in the Nantucket 
Redevelopment Area be set aside as affordable housing units.  Pinelands Development Credits 
must be acquired and redeemed for 30% of all units in the Redevelopment Area, excluding any 
required affordable housing units.  
 
According to the Redevelopment Plan and Fair Share Plan, at least 306 total units are expected to 
be developed, 60 of which must be affordable units. In addition, a minimum of 40,000 square 
feet of commercial or office space is required. Permitted development may be accommodated in 
mixed use or “stand alone” buildings.  Any development that occurs within the Redevelopment 
Area must comply with all other municipal application requirements and development 
regulations, as well as the Comprehensive Management Plan.   
 
Based on the new 10 unit per acre permitted density in the Redevelopment Area, Ordinance 
1994-2018 permits a maximum of 600 residential units, 30 more than under the previously 
certified HC-2 District designation. Such a density is significantly higher than that prescribed by 
the Comprehensive Management Plan for Galloway’s Regional Growth Area.  N.J.A.C. 7:50-
5.28(a)1 and 3 require the Township to zone for a density of only 3.75 units per upland acre in its 



4 
 

Regional Growth Area.  However, the Comprehensive Management Plan does provide 
municipalities with the ability to zone portions of their Regional Growth Areas for higher 
densities, provided the lands in question are appropriate for more intensive development, 
infrastructure exists or can be provided to support the increased density and sufficient 
opportunities for the use of Pinelands Development Credits are provided. The Nantucket 
Redevelopment Area meets these standards.   
 
Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 
and 1994-2018 are consistent with the land use and development standards of the 
Comprehensive Management Plan. Therefore, this standard for certification is met. 
 
 

3. Requirement for Certificate of Filing and Content of Development Applications 
 
Not applicable.  

 
 
4. Requirement for Municipal Review and Action on All Development 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
5. Review and Action on Forestry Applications 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
6. Review of Local Permits 
 

Not applicable. 
   

 
7. Requirement for Capital Improvement Program 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
8. Accommodation of Pinelands Development Credits 
 

Ordinance 1994-2018 adopts a new redevelopment plan for a portion of Galloway Township’s 
Regional Growth Area.  Based on this plan, multi-family residential development will be 
permitted at a density of 10 units per acre in the 60-acre Nantucket Redevelopment Area, with 
the use of Pinelands Development Credits required for 30% of all proposed units. Units made 
affordable to low- and moderate-income households for purposes of satisfying the 20% set-aside 
requirement in the Redevelopment Area are exempt from this Pinelands Development Credit 
requirement.  Affordable housing units beyond the required 20% set-aside will require that 
Pinelands Development Credits be acquired and redeemed at the 30% rate.  
 



5 
 

The development standards set forth in the Nantucket Redevelopment Plan (10 units per acre 
maximum density; 30% required PDCs) are very similar to those previously certified by the 
Commission in the underlying HC-2 District (9.5 units per acre; 30% required PDCs). A new 
exemption for affordable housing units has been incorporated in recognition of the Township’s 
need to plan for its relatively large affordable housing obligation. The result is little change in 
theoretical zoning capacity or opportunities for the redemption of Pinelands Development 
Credits in the Township’s Regional Growth Area. At most, 600 new units could be developed 
and 144 rights (36 Pinelands Development Credits) could be redeemed.  As was the case under 
the prior zoning plan, these numbers are well in excess of what the Comprehensive Management 
Plan prescribes for Galloway’s Regional Growth Area.   
 
It is important to note that both the prior HC-2 District standards and the new Nantucket 
Redevelopment Area standards described above represent a departure from the traditional zoning 
and Pinelands Development Credit strategy outlined in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28(a).  This section of 
the Comprehensive Management Plan anticipates that municipalities will establish “base” 
densities in their various Regional Growth Area zoning districts and then provide opportunities 
to increase such densities through the use of Pinelands Development Credits. In Galloway’s 
Regional Growth Area, the Comprehensive Management Plan establishes a “base” density of 2.5 
units per developable acre and directs the Township to provide for “bonus” density through the 
use of Pinelands Development Credits to allow for a total of 3.75 units per developable acre.  
There is nothing in the CMP that prevents municipalities from exceeding these minimum 
requirements, which is exactly what Galloway Township has elected to do.  The Township has 
chosen to provide for higher density in the Nantucket Redevelopment Area as a means of 
spurring commercial development and satisfying the municipality’s affordable housing 
obligation.  At the same time, the Township has adopted standards to ensure that Pinelands 
Development Credit use will be a significant part of whatever development projects ultimately 
come to fruition in the redevelopment area.   
 
Rather than relying on the traditional approach of providing developers with the option of using 
Pinelands Development Credits to increase permitted density, Ordinance 1994-2018 guarantees 
a PDC redemption rate of 30% for residential development within the Redevelopment Area, with 
the exception of affordable housing units. Given the greater certainty provided by this approach, 
the Executive Director finds that the PDC requirements adopted by Ordinance 1994-2018 are 
consistent with Comprehensive Management Plan standards. 

 
This standard for certification is met.  

 
 
9. Referral of Development Applications to Environmental Commission 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
10. General Conformance Requirements 
 

Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 
and 1994-2018 are consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands Comprehensive 
Management Plan. This standard for certification is met. 

 



6 
 

 
11. Conformance with Energy Conservation 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
12. Conformance with the Federal Act 
 

Galloway Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 
and 1994-2018 are consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands Comprehensive 
Management Plan. No special issues exist relative to the Federal Act. Therefore, this standard for 
certification is met. 

 
 
13. Procedure to Resolve Intermunicipal Conflicts 
 
 The redevelopment area established by Ordinance 1994-2018 does not include lands that are 

adjacent to any other municipalities. Therefore, intermunicipal conflicts are not anticipated and 
this standard for certification is met. 

 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A public hearing to receive testimony concerning Galloway Township’s application for certification of 
its 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 was duly 
advertised, noticed and held on September 12, 2018 at the Richard J. Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield 
Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 9:30 a.m. Ms. Grogan conducted the hearing, at which no testimony 
was received. 
 
Written comments were accepted through September 14, 2018; however, no such comments were 
received. 
  
 

 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the Findings of Fact cited above, the Executive Director has concluded that Galloway 
Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 
comply with Comprehensive Management Plan standards for the certification of municipal master plans 
and land use ordinances. Accordingly, the Executive Director recommends that the Commission issue an 
order to certify the 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-
2018 of Galloway Township.  
 
SRG/CGA 
Attachment 
 
 



£¤30

Lots to be included in the
Nantucket

Redevelopment Area

I

R5

HC-2

R5C

VR

HC-1

FEDERAL

HC-2

PIRD

LENOX

HC-2 PRHV

R1

PR-1 
POMONA

WHPII-
Tract3

S G
en

oa
 A

ve

S O
de

ss
a A

ve
Atlantic Ave

S M
an

nh
eim

 A
ve

Todd Ave

S O
de

ss
a A

ve

£¤30

Aloe St

S P
om

on
a R

d

Tilton Rd

W Jimmie Leeds Rd

Po
mo

na
 R

d

0 0.50.25
Miles ¯

Existing Conditions of Lots to be Rezoned

^

Executive Director's Report
Galloway Ordinance 1994-2018
Exhibit 1
9/28/2018

£¤30

£¤9

£¤322

Pinelands Management Areas
Rural Development Area
Pinelands Village
Regional Growth Area Existing Zoning

Parcels
Rezoned Lots



 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 

NO. PC4-18-_____________ 
 

TITLE: Issuing an Order to Certify Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, Amending the Browns 
Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan  

Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 
seconds the motion that: 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, on June 3, 1983, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land Use 
Ordinances of Pemberton Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-83-52 of the Pinelands Commission specified that any amendment to the 
Township’s certified Master Plan and Land Use Ordinances be submitted to the Executive Director in 
accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 (Submission and Review of Amendments to Certified Master Plans 
and Land Use Ordinances) of the Comprehensive Management Plan to determine if said amendment 
raises a substantial issue with respect to conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive Management 
Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-83-52 further specified that any such amendment shall only become 
effective as provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 of the Comprehensive Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 8, 2017, the Pinelands Commission certified the Browns Mills Town Center 
Redevelopment Plan, as adopted and amended by Pemberton Township Ordinances 12-2011 and 15-
2017, respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2018, Pemberton Township adopted Ordinance 13-2018, further amending the 
Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan by adopting a revised zoning plan for the 
redevelopment area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Area is located entirely within a Pinelands 
Regional Growth Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission received a certified copy of Ordinance 13-2018 on August 17, 
2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, by letter dated August 27, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that 
Ordinance 13-2018 would require formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing to receive testimony on Ordinance 13-2018 was duly advertised, noticed 
and held on September 12, 2018 at the Richard J. Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, 
New Jersey at 9:30 a.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has found that Ordinance 13-2018 is consistent with the standards 
and provisions of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has submitted a report to the Commission recommending issuance 
of an order to certify that Ordinance 13-2018 is in conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive 
Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission’s CMP Policy and Implementation Committee has reviewed the 
Executive Director’s report and has recommended that Ordinance 13-2018 be certified; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has duly considered all public testimony submitted to the 
Commission concerning Ordinance 13-2018 and has reviewed the Executive Director’s report; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission accepts the recommendation of the Executive Director; and 



 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     
Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 
Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 
   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 
Executive Director  Chairman 

 
 

2

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5H, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force 
or effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the 
minutes of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 
expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 
effective upon such approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that  

 
1. An Order is hereby issued to certify that Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, amending the 

Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan, is in conformance with the Pinelands 
Comprehensive Management Plan.  

 
2. Any additional amendments to Pemberton Township’s certified Master Plan and Land Use 

Ordinances shall be submitted to the Executive Director in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 
to determine if said amendments raise a substantial issue with respect to the Comprehensive 
Management Plan. Any such amendment shall become effective only as provided in N.J.A.C. 
7:50-3.45. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

REPORT ON PEMBERTON TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE 13-2018,  
AMENDING THE BROWNS MILLS TOWN CENTER REDEVELOPMENT PLAN  

 
       September 28, 2018 
 
 
Pemberton Township 
500 Pemberton-Browns Mills Road 
Pemberton, NJ  08068 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

I. Background 
 
The Township of Pemberton is located in eastern Burlington County, in the northwestern section of the 
Pinelands Area.  Pinelands municipalities that abut Pemberton Township include New Hanover, 
Springfield, Southampton and Woodland Townships in Burlington County and Manchester and 
Plumsted Townships in Ocean County. 
 
On June 3, 1983, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and codified Land Use 
Ordinances of Pemberton Township. 
 
On September 8, 2017, the Pinelands Commission certified the Browns Mills Town Center 
Redevelopment Plan, as adopted and amended by Pemberton Township Ordinances 12-2011 and 15-
2017, respectively.  The Redevelopment Plan effectively established a new zoning plan for the Browns 
Mills Town Center Redevelopment Area, which is located entirely within a Pinelands Regional Growth 
Area.  
 
Also in 2017, the Township began working with the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, 
Local Planning Services, on a revised vision for the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Area.  
That planning process led to the drafting of revisions to the redevelopment plan, both to simplify the 
extensive design standards contained in the prior plan and to better address residential development 
potential in the area.    
 
On July 11, 2018, Pemberton Township adopted Ordinance 13-2018, amending the Browns Mills Town 
Center Redevelopment Plan by adopting a revised zoning plan for the redevelopment area. The 
Pinelands Commission received a certified copy of Ordinance 13-2018 on August 17, 2018. 
 
By letter dated August 27, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that Ordinance 13-2018 
would require formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission. 
 



2 
 

 
II.    Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances 
 
The following ordinance has been submitted to the Pinelands Commission for certification: 
 
* Ordinance 13-2018, amending the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan, introduced 

on June 20, 2018 and adopted on July 11, 2018. 
 
This ordinance has been reviewed to determine whether it conforms with the standards for certification 
of municipal master plans and land use ordinances as set out in N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39 of the Pinelands 
Comprehensive Management Plan.  The findings from this review are presented below.  The numbers 
used to designate the respective items correspond to the numbers used to identify the standards in 
N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39.   
 
 
1. Natural Resource Inventory 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
2. Required Provisions of Land Use Ordinance Relating to Development Standards 

 
Ordinance 13-2018 amends the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan previously 
enacted by Ordinances 12-2011 and 15-2017.  Located entirely within a Pinelands Regional 
Growth Area, the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Area is centered around 
Pemberton-Browns Mills, Juliustown and Trenton Roads and contains extensive areas of existing 
development. Ordinance 13-2018 does not change the boundaries of the Redevelopment Area 
itself. Rather, the ordinance adopts a new zoning plan within the Redevelopment Area that 
reflects revised permitted uses and residential densities. Whereas the prior redevelopment plan 
called for six districts within the Redevelopment Area, Ordinance 13-2018 establishes only four. 
The boundaries of the new TC-MU (Town Center Mixed Use), TC-R (Town Center Retail), TC-
N (Town Center Neighborhood) and TC-WD (Town Center Waterfront Development) Districts 
are depicted on Exhibit #1.   
 
Ordinance 13-2018 permits various types of residential development in the TC-MU, TC-N and 
TC-WD Districts, including single-family detached units, attached single-family units (duplexes 
and townhouses), apartments and assisted living facilities.  Permitted densities range from five to 
20 units per acre, with requirements for the use of Pinelands Development Credits associated 
with residential developments of five or more units.  A wide variety of nonresidential uses is 
permitted in the TC-MU and TC-R Districts, with a more limited list of uses permitted in the TC-
WD District.  Exhibit #2 shows existing building types and areas where redevelopment 
opportunities exist within the Redevelopment Area.  

 
Residential zoning capacity under the amended Redevelopment Plan is difficult to determine, 
given that it is somewhat dependent on the redevelopment of already developed properties. The 
Township’s estimates of residential zoning capacity under the prior plan included the potential 
for some 250 new units, a figure that included a small number of condominiums or apartments 
on the second and third floors of certain commercial buildings.  Residential development 
potential under the amended Plan adopted by Ordinance 13-2018 is likely not significantly 



3 
 

different, despite the higher permitted density for apartments and assisted living facilities. While 
somewhat higher than the CMP’s prescribed density for Pemberton’s Regional Growth Area (3.0 
units per upland acre), this permitted intensity of development is not inconsistent with CMP 
standards given the availability of infrastructure and the primarily developed nature of this 
portion of Pemberton’s Regional Growth Area. 

 
Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018 is consistent with the land use and development 
standards of the Comprehensive Management Plan. Therefore, this standard for certification is 
met. 

 
 
3. Requirement for Certificate of Filing and Content of Development Applications 

 
Not applicable. 
 

 
4. Requirement for Municipal Review and Action on All Development 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
5. Review and Action on Forestry Applications 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
6. Review of Local Permits 
 

Not applicable. 
   

 
7. Requirement for Capital Improvement Program 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
8. Accommodation of Pinelands Development Credits 
 

The revised zoning plan adopted by Ordinance 13-2018 for the Browns Mills Town Center 
Redevelopment Area permits new residential development (single-family detached units, 
attached single-family units apartments and assisted living facilities) within three different 
zoning districts (TC-MU, TC-N and TC-WD).  Permitted densities range from five units per acre 
for single-family detached units to 10 units per acre for single family attached units (duplexes 
and townhouses).  A maximum density of 20 units per acre is permitted for apartments and 
assisted living facilities.     
 
N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.39(a)8 specifies that in order to be certified by the Commission, municipal land 
use ordinances must provide for sufficiently residentially zoned property in the Regional Growth 
Area to be eligible for an increase in density to accommodate Pinelands Development Credits 



4 
 

(PDC) as provided for in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28(a)3. In order to comply with N.J.A.C. 7:50-
5.28(a)3, Ordinance 13-2018 requires that PDCs be acquired and redeemed for 25% of all single-
family detached, single-family attached, multifamily and assisted living facility units in the 
Redevelopment Area.  This requirement applies only to projects of five or more units (i.e., major 
developments) and does not include condominiums or apartments over retail stores.  

 
While the 25% requirement for residential development in the redevelopment area is not as high 
a number as would be provided through the more traditional zoning approach where PDCs would 
account for 33 percent of the total number of permitted units, it is important to remember that the 
traditional base density/bonus density approach utilized throughout the Pinelands Area only 
provides an opportunity for the use of PDCs. There is no requirement under the traditional 
approach that any PDCs be used in any particular development project. Ordinance 13-2018 
guarantees that PDCs will be purchased and redeemed as part of the approval of any major 
residential development within the redevelopment area, regardless of the density or number of 
units that are ultimately built. Given the greater certainty provided by this approach, the 
Township’s desire to promote mixed use development and the higher density permitted overall in 
the Redevelopment Area, the Executive Director believes that the 25% PDC requirement 
adopted by Ordinance 13-2018 should be viewed as being consistent with Comprehensive 
Management Plan standards.  

 
This standard for certification is met. 

  
 
9. Referral of Development Applications to Environmental Commission 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
10. General Conformance Requirements 
 

Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, amending the Browns Mills Town Center 
Redevelopment Plan, is consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 
Comprehensive Management Plan.   
 
This standard for certification is met. 

 
 
11. Conformance with Energy Conservation 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
 
12. Conformance with the Federal Act 
 

Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, amending the Browns Mills Town Center 
Redevelopment Plan, is consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 
Comprehensive Management Plan.  No special issues exist relative to the Federal Act. 

 
This standard for certification is met. 



5 
 

 
 
13. Procedure to Resolve Intermunicipal Conflicts 
 
 The Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Area is not contiguous with or adjacent to any 

other municipalities. Therefore, this standard is not applicable. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A public hearing to receive testimony concerning Pemberton Township’s application for certification of 
Ordinance 13-2018 was duly advertised, noticed and held on September 12, 2018 at the Richard J. 
Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 9:30 a.m. Ms. Grogan conducted the 
hearing, at which no testimony was received.  
 
Written comments were accepted through September 14, 2018; however, none were received.  
 
 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the Findings of Fact cited above, the Executive Director has concluded that Pemberton 
Township Ordinance 13-2018, amending the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan, complies 
with Comprehensive Management Plan standards for the certification of municipal master plans and 
land use ordinances.  Accordingly, the Executive Director recommends that the Commission issue an 
order to certify Ordinance 13-2018 of Pemberton Township.  
 
SRG/CPE 
Attachments 
 



Executive Director's Report
Pemberton Twp Ord. #13-2018
September 28, 2019    Exhibit #1



Executive Director's Report
Pemberton Twp. Ord. 13-2018
September 28, 2018   Exhibit #2



 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 
 

NO. PC4-18-_____________ 
 
 
TITLE: Determining the Eligibility of a Parcel of Land for Acquisition by the Department of Environmental 

Protection Pursuant to the Limited Practical Use Program 
 

 
Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 
seconds the motion that: 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed the Findings of Fact, Conclusion and 
recommendation of the Executive Director that the following parcel is eligible for acquisition under the 
Limited Practical Use program: 
 
2007-0398.001 Brian Tomasino, Block 134.01, Lot 4; Block 134.02, Lot 3; Block 146, Lot 3; 

Block 152, Lot 3; Galloway Township, 4.15 ac.; Pinelands Town (TR zoning 
district); waiver application denied August 10, 2018.  

 
WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 
Director’s recommendation has been received for this parcel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Findings of Fact and Conclusion of the 
Executive Director for this parcel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the parcel conforms to the criteria set 
forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.2 and 9.3 for eligibility for acquisition under the Limited Practical Use 
program; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force 
or effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the 
minutes of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 
expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 
effective upon such approval. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinelands Commission approves the acquisition of 
the following parcel and authorizes the Executive Director to transmit the name of this property owner 
to the Department of Environmental Protection for acquisition, provided that the landowner freely 
agrees to sell his parcel: 
 
2007-0398.001 Brian Tomasino, Block 134.01, Lot 4; Block 134.02, Lot 3; Block 146, Lot 3; 

Block 152, Lot 3; Galloway Township, 4.15 ac.; Pinelands Town (TR zoning 
district); waiver application denied August 10, 2018.  

 
 
 

Record of Commission Votes 
 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     
Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 
Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 
   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 
Executive Director  Chairman 

 
 



 

REPORT ON PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY FOR THE 
PINELANDS LIMITED PRACTICAL USE PROGRAM 

 
August 30, 2018 

Brian Tomasino. 
4 Brookview Lane 
Granby CT 06035 
       Please Always Refer to  

This Application Number 
       App. No. 2007-0398.001 
       Galloway Township  
       Block 134.01, Lot 4  
       Block 134.02, Lot 3 
       Block 146, Lot 3 
       Block 152, Lot 3 
Dear Mr. Tomasino: 
 
The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for eligibility in the Pinelands Limited 
Practical Use (LPU) land acquisition program.  On behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, I am 
recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the application at its October 12, 2018 meeting.  
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
This application is for a determination of eligibility for the Pinelands Limited Practical Use Land Acquisition 
Program.  The property is located in Galloway Township’s TR (Town Residential) zoning district within a 
Pinelands Town management area and contains 4.15 acres.  An application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance by 
the applicant to develop a home on this parcel was denied by the Pinelands Commission on August 10, 2018. 
 
The subject parcel contains all contiguous land in common ownership on or after January 14, 1981.  There are no 
principal structures located on the parcel.  No resource extraction operation has been approved for this parcel.  No 
development has been approved for this parcel.  There are no Pinelands Development Credits allocated to the 
parcel.  Based on the available information, the parcel cannot be developed consistent with the requirements of 
the Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP).  The applicant owns less than 50 acres of land in the Pinelands as 
of July 17, 1995. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
N.J.A.C.7:50-9.2 and 7:50-9.3 set forth the standards which must be met in order for a property to be determined 
eligible for the Limited Practical Use Program. The first condition is that the Pinelands Commission has either 
denied a Waiver of Strict Compliance for the parcel in question pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-4, Part V or has 
approved a Waiver of Strict Compliance for the parcel and granted a transferable development right to other lands 
in accordance with N.J.A.C.7:50-4.66(b)3 and 5.30(a).   As the applicant received a Waiver denial on August 10, 
2018, the applicant meets the criteria contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.2(a)1. 
 



2 
 

The second condition is that the parcel contains less than 50 acres.  As the parcel contains 4.15 acres, the parcel 
meets the criteria contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.2(a) 2. 
 
The third condition is that the standards contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.3 relative to the ownership and the present 
and potential uses of the parcel in question have been met.  The applicant has demonstrated that the parcel meets 
the standards contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.3 so the parcel meets the criteria contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.2(a)3. 
  
The property is eligible for the Limited Practical Use acquisition program because all program eligibility criteria 
in N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.2 and N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.3 have been met.  As a result, it is recommended that the Pinelands 
Commission APPROVE the application and notify the Department of Environmental Protection that the subject 
parcel is eligible to be acquired under the provisions of N.J.A.C. 7:50-9.  
  

APPEAL 
 
The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the right to 
appeal this recommendation in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91.  An interested party is someone who has a 
specific property interest sufficient to require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds.  Only appeal 
requests submitted by someone meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey 
Office of Administrative Law for a hearing.  Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission no later 
than 5:00 PM on September 28, 2018 and include the following information:   

 
A. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 
B. the application number; 
 
C. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and  
 
D. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has been made, by 

certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and environmental commission 
with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this decision. 

 
If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission will act on this application at its meeting on October 12, 2018.  
At this meeting, the Commission may either approve the determination of the Executive Director or refer the 
application to the Office of Administrative Law for a hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Betsy Piner of our staff. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Susan R. Grogan, P.P., AICP 
 Chief Planner 
 
 
 
/A4 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 

 
NO. PC4-18-_____________ 
 
TITLE: To Adopt Amendments to the Comprehensive Management Plan in Accordance with the Administrative 

Procedure Act (Alternate Design Wastewater Treatment Systems Pilot Program) 
 
 

Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 
seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, on June 8, 2018, the Pinelands Commission authorized the publication of proposed amendments to 
the Comprehensive Management Plan through adoption of Resolution PC4-18-18; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments, which eliminate the installation deadline for alternate design wastewater 
treatment systems participating in the Commission’s Pilot Program, were published in the July 16, 2018 issue of 
the New Jersey Register at 50 N.J.R. 1523(a); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission held a public hearing to elicit public comment on the proposed 
amendments on August 29, 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission also solicited written comment on the proposed amendments through 
September 14, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission received and reviewed one comment on the proposed amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission wishes to adopt the proposed amendments in accordance with the 
September 28, 2018 Notice of Adoption; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission in adopting the 
Comprehensive Management Plan or amendments thereto shall have force or effect until thirty (30) days, 
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the meeting of the Commission 
has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to expiration of the review period the Governor shall 
approve same, in which case the action shall become effective upon such approval.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that  
 
1. The Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the proposed Comprehensive Management Plan amendments, 

as published in the July 16, 2018 New Jersey Register, and in accordance with the attached September 28, 
2018 Notice of Adoption. 

 
2. The Executive Director shall forward the amendments and minutes of this action to the Governor of the 

State of New Jersey, and shall also forward these amendments to the United States Secretary of the 
Interior for review in accordance with Section 502 of the National Parks and Recreation Act of 1978. 

 
3. The amendments shall take effect as provided in the Pinelands Protection Act and upon publication in the 

New Jersey Register. 
 
 

Record of Commission Votes 
 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     
Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 
Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 
   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 
Executive Director  Chairman 

 



         
 
PINELANDS COMMISSION 
 
Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan 
 
Pilot Program for Alternate Design Wastewater Treatment Systems 
 
Adopted Amendments:  N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84, 10.22 and 10.23 
 
Proposed: July 16, 2018 at 50 N.J.R. 1523(a) 
 
Adopted: October 12, 2018 by the New Jersey Pinelands Commission, 
    Nancy Wittenberg, Executive Director  
 
Filed: _____, 2018 without change 
 
Authorized by:  New Jersey Pinelands Commission  
 
Authority: N.J.S.A. 13:18A-6j. 
 
Effective Date:  ___, 2018 
 
Expiration Date:  Exempt. 
 

The New Jersey Pinelands Commission (Commission) is adopting 

amendments to Subchapters 6, Management Programs and Minimum Standards, 

and 10, Pilot Programs, of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan 

(CMP). These amendments were proposed on July 16, 2018 at 50 N.J.R. 1523(a). 

Their purpose is to allow for continued installation of certain wastewater 

treatment technologies in the Pinelands Area. 

 In association with publication of the proposed amendments in the July 16, 

2018 issue of the New Jersey Register, the Pinelands Commission transmitted the 

proposal to each Pinelands municipality and county, as well as to other interested 

parties, for review and comment.  Additionally, the Pinelands Commission: 

1 
 



- Sent notice of the public hearing to all persons and organizations that 

subscribe to the Commission’s public hearing registry; 

- Placed advertisements of the public hearing in the four official newspapers 

of the Commission, as well as on the Commission’s own web page;  

- Submitted the proposed amendments to the Pinelands Municipal Council 

pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-7f;  

- Distributed the proposed amendments and new rule to the news media 

maintaining a press office in the State House Complex; and 

- Published a copy of the proposed amendments on its web page at 

www.nj.gov/pinelands 

Summary of Hearing Officer Recommendations and Agency Response:  

A formal public hearing was held before the Commission staff on August 

29, 2018. One individual attended the hearing and provided oral testimony on the 

rule proposal. The hearing officer’s recommendations are in accordance with the 

public comment and agency responses below. 

 The hearing was recorded on magnetic tape which is on file at the 

Commission’s office at 15 Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey.  The 

record of this rulemaking is available for inspection in accordance with applicable 

law by contacting: 

 Betsy Piner  

 Pinelands Commission 

 P.O. Box 359 

 New Lisbon, NJ 08064 

2 
 

http://www.nj.gov/pinelands


Summary of Public Comments and Agency Responses: 

 The Commission accepted oral comments on the July 16, 2018 proposal at 

the above-discussed August 29, 2018 public hearing and written comments by 

regular mail, facsimile or e-mail through September 14, 2018.  

Comments were received from one individual: Rich Bizub, Director for 

Water Programs, Pinelands Preservation Alliance.  Mr. Bizub expressed support 

for the proposed amendments and the Pilot Program as a whole.  He agreed it was 

appropriate to remove the installation deadline for pilot program technologies and 

important to provide an opportunity for new technologies to participate in the 

program.  The Commission appreciates this expression of support.  

Federal Standards Statement 

 Section 502 of the National Parks and Recreation Act of 1978 (16 U.S.C. 

§471i) called upon the State of New Jersey to develop a comprehensive 

management plan for the Pinelands National Reserve. The original plan adopted 

in 1980 was subject to the approval of the United States Secretary of the Interior, 

as are all amendments to the plan.  

 The Federal Pinelands legislation sets forth rigorous goals which the plan 

must meet, including the protection, preservation and enhancement of the land 

and water resources of the Pinelands. The amendments now being adopted are 

designed to meet those goals by allowing for the continued installation and 

monitoring of alternate design wastewater treatment systems for residential 

development in the Pinelands Area. 

3 
 



 There are no other Federal requirements which apply to the subject matter 

of these amendments. 

 

 

 

  

4 
 



PROPOSALS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 NEW JERSEY REGISTER, MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018 (CITE 50 N.J.R. 1523) 

RULE PROPOSALS 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

INTERESTED PERSONS 

Interested persons may submit comments, information or arguments concerning any of the rule proposals in this issue until the date indicated in the 
proposal. Submissions and any inquiries about submissions should be addressed to the agency officer specified for a particular proposal. 

The required minimum period for comment concerning a proposal is 30 days. A proposing agency may extend the 30-day comment period to 
accommodate public hearings or to elicit greater public response to a proposed new rule or amendment. Most notices of proposal include a 60-day 
comment period, in order to qualify the notice for an exception to the rulemaking calendar requirements of N.J.S.A. 52:14B-3. An extended comment 
deadline will be noted in the heading of a proposal or appear in subsequent notice in the Register. 

At the close of the period for comments, the proposing agency may thereafter adopt a proposal, without change, or with changes not in violation of 
the rulemaking procedures at N.J.A.C. 1:30-6.3. The adoption becomes effective upon publication in the Register of a notice of adoption, unless 
otherwise indicated in the adoption notice. Promulgation in the New Jersey Register establishes a new or amended rule as an official part of the New 
Jersey Administrative Code. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

(a) 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan 
Pilot Program for Alternate Design Wastewater 

Treatment Systems 

Proposed Amendments: N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84, 10.22, 
and 10.23 

Authorized By: New Jersey Pinelands Commission, Nancy 
Wittenberg, Executive Director. 

Authority: N.J.S.A. 13:18A-6.j. 

Calendar Reference: See Summary below for explanation of 
exception to calendar requirement. 

Proposal Number: PRN 2018-064. 

A public hearing concerning this notice of proposal will be held on: 

August 29, 2018, at 9:30 A.M. 
Richard J. Sullivan Center 
15C Springfield Road 
New Lisbon, New Jersey 

Submit written comments by regular mail, facsimile, or e-mail by 
September 14, 2018, to: 

Susan R. Grogan, P.P., AICP 
Chief Planner 
Pinelands Commission 
PO Box 359 
New Lisbon, NJ 08064 
Facsimile: (609) 894-7330 
E-mail: planning@pinelands.nj.gov or through the Commis-
sion’s website at http://nj.gov/pinelands/home/contact/plan 
ning.shtml 

The name and mailing address of the commenter must be submitted 
with all public comments. Commenters who do not wish their names and 
affiliations to be published in any notice of adoption subsequently 
prepared by the Commission should so indicate when they submit their 
comments. 

The agency proposal follows: 

Summary 

The New Jersey Pinelands Commission (Commission) proposes to 
amend N.J.A.C. 7:50-6, Management Programs and Minimum 
Standards, and 10, Pilot Programs of the Pinelands Comprehensive 
Management Plan (CMP). The Pinelands CMP has been guiding land 
use and development activities in the Pinelands since it took effect on 
January 14, 1981. Since that time, the CMP has been amended a number 
of times, most recently in March 2018, through a set of amendments 

related to fees, escrows, application requirements and procedures, public 
notice and mailing requirements, water quality standards, landfill 
closure, signs, and the Pilot Program for Alternate Design Wastewater 
Treatment Systems (see 50 N.J.R. 969(a)). 

The proposed amendments relate solely to the Pilot Program for 
Alternate Design Wastewater Treatment Systems. They are intended to 
modify the standards of this long-standing pilot program to allow for the 
continued installation of certain wastewater treatment technologies in the 
Pinelands Area. A more detailed description of the pilot program and 
proposed amendments follows. 

In 2000, the Pinelands Commission formed a special Ad Hoc Septic 
System Committee to research alternate septic system technologies that 
might better meet the water quality standards of the Comprehensive 
Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6, Part VIII) for residential 
development on lots smaller than 3.2 acres, where such lots were already 
authorized pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-5. In its research efforts, the 
Committee consulted wastewater engineering professionals, State and 
regional on-site technology demonstration projects, alternate treatment 
system technology manufacturers, Pinelands Area county health 
departments and other State and local agencies. Based on this research, 
the Committee identified five technologies that it determined could be 
expected to meet Pinelands water quality standards for residential 
development on lots smaller than 3.2 acres in size. The identified 
technologies were the Amphidrome, Ashco RFSIII, Cromaglass, 
Bioclere, and FAST treatment systems. Based upon nitrogen removal 
expectations and the Pinelands Septic Dilution Model, the Committee 
concluded the Amphidrome, Cromaglass, Bioclere, and FAST systems 
could be permitted on lots of at least one acre and that the Ashco RFSIII 
system could be allowed on residential lots of at least 1.5 acres. All of 
the identified systems utilize proven biological nutrient removal 
processes to reduce nitrogen levels in treated wastewater. The water 
quality requirements of N.J.A.C. 7:50-6, Part VIII, include provisions 
that are aimed at controlling the amount of nitrogen that enters the 
environment because nitrogen itself is a significant pollutant and 
because it often serves as an indicator of changes in overall water 
quality. 

The Ad Hoc Septic System Committee unanimously recommended 
that an interim program be developed for the approval, installation, and 
monitoring of the five identified wastewater treatment technologies and 
that the interim program include conditions and safeguards to govern 
their use. To implement these recommendations, the Pinelands 
Commission adopted a set of amendments to the Comprehensive 
Management Plan that authorized the use of the technologies through the 
establishment of the Alternate Design Treatment Systems Pilot Program 
(see 34 N.J.R. 722(a); 2804(b)). These Comprehensive Management 
Plan amendments, which took effect on August 5, 2002, are codified at 
N.J.A.C. 7:50-10, Part IV. The Pilot Program was implemented to 
provide a means to test whether the five identified technologies could be 
maintained and operated, so as to meet the water quality standards of the 



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION PROPOSALS 

(CITE 50 N.J.R. 1524) NEW JERSEY REGISTER, MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018  

Comprehensive Management Plan in a manner that a homeowner can be 
reasonably expected to follow. 

Implementation of the Pilot Program commenced on August 5, 2002, 
with the first pilot program treatment system installed in 2004. As of 
June 2017, a total of 305 pilot program systems have been installed in 
association with single-family residential development in 28 different 
Pinelands municipalities. 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.23 of the Comprehensive Management Plan 
requires that the Executive Director review the Alternate Design 
Treatment Systems Pilot Program periodically and report the findings of 
that evaluation to the Pinelands Commission in a program 
implementation report. The criteria by which the Pilot Program is 
periodically evaluated are set forth at N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.23(b)1 through 6. 
The Executive Director issued program implementation reports in 2006, 
2009, and 2012. Links to all reports may be found on the Commission’s 
website at www.nj.gov/pinelands. In response to the recommendations 
set forth in these reports, the Commission adopted amendments to the 
Comprehensive Management Plan to: 

• Authorize the installation of Pilot Program technologies in all 
Pinelands municipalities; 

• Provide the ability to install more than 10 of any Pilot Program 
technology in the same residential development; 

• Grant permanent approval status to three Pilot Program 
technologies (Amphidrome, Bioclere, and FAST) in recognition of 
their demonstrated ability to meet CMP water quality standards; 

• Remove one technology (Ashco RFSIII) from the Pilot Program due 
to its commercial unavailability in the Pinelands Area; 

• Remove one technology (Cromaglass) from the Pilot Program due 
to its inability to meet CMP water quality standards; 

• Provide the Executive Director with the authority to impose an 
immediate suspension on all new installations of a Pilot Program 
technology that is not adhering to the requirements of the program 
or meeting CMP water quality standards; 

• Provide an opportunity for additional prescreened technologies to 
enter the Pilot Program; and 

• Continue the Pilot Program by allowing installation of new systems 
through August 5, 2018. 

The above-referenced CMP amendments took effect in 2006, 2007, 
2010, 2014, and 2018 and may be found at 37 N.J.R. 4133(a), 38 N.J.R. 
4133(a); 39 N.J.R. 1970(a), 5077(b); 42 N.J.R. 987(a), 2422(a); 46 
N.J.R. 319(a), 1877(a); and 49 N.J.R. 3075(a), 50 N.J.R. 969(a). 

The Executive Director completed a fourth Implementation Report in 
November 2017, last revised in April 2018 (http://www.nj.gov/pine 
lands/landuse/current/altseptic/Final%20April%2027%202018%20%202
018_ImplementationReport.pdf). In this report, the Executive Director 
found that: 

• The continued use of advanced on-site treatment technologies is 
essential to the efficient use and orderly development of the growth-
oriented areas of the Pinelands Area. 

• The Pilot Program provides an appropriate means to test whether 
technologies can be maintained and operated, so as to meet CMP water 
quality standards in a manner that a homeowner can reasonably be 
expected to follow. 

• The Pilot Program has been successful in identifying technologies 
that achieve compliance with Pinelands water quality standards when 
used for residential development on appropriately-sized lots. 

• Landowners in the Pinelands Area benefit when new technologies 
are accepted into the Pilot Program, expanding choices and stabilizing 
prices. 

• Proper operation and maintenance remains crucial to the long-term 
performance of the Pilot Program technologies. 

Based on these findings, the Executive Director recommended that 
the Commission continue to monitor and evaluate the four technologies 
currently in the Pilot Program and issue another implementation report 
in November 2019. The Executive Director further recommended that 
two new technologies be added to the Pilot Program in 2018. Finally, the 
Executive Director recommended that the Commission amend the CMP 
to remove the current August 5, 2018 installation deadline for Pilot 
Program technologies. 

The Commission is now proposing amendments to the CMP to revise 
the Pilot Program in response to the findings and recommendations set 
forth in the 2017 implementation report. Specifically, N.J.A.C. 7:50-
10.22(a)4 and 10.23(h) are propose for deletion in order to remove the 
August 5, 2018 deadline for installation of pilot program technologies. 
The Commission believes the installation deadline is no longer 
necessary, given that the Executive Director has the authority, pursuant 
to recodified N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.22(a)5, to immediately suspend all 
installations of a particular technology if monitoring data shows the 
system is not meeting CMP water quality standards. Likewise, the 
Executive Director may suspend installations if it becomes evident that a 
technology vendor is not complying with the terms of the Pilot Program. 
The Executive Director may also require an increased lot size for a 
particular technology if monitoring results indicate a larger land area is 
necessary to meet CMP water quality standards. Because sufficient 
safeguards exist, a fixed installation deadline is not needed. It is worth 
noting that a fixed deadline has also proven over time to be difficult to 
administer. It often impacts development applications in progress and 
can only be changed upon completion of a lengthy rulemaking process. 

In addition to removal of the installation deadline, recodified N.J.A.C. 
7:50-10.22(a)6v is proposed for amendment to clarify the required 
certifications that must be provided to the Commission as a condition for 
use of an alternate design pilot program treatment system. This 
subparagraph previously required that the manufacturer of each system 
(or the manufacturer’s agent) certify to the Commission and the county 
board of health that installation of each system has been properly 
completed. An amendment is proposed to require that the certification be 
made by both the manufacturer and a New Jersey licensed professional 
engineer, and that the certification relate not only to proper installation 
of the system but also to its proper operation. These amended 
certification requirements will now be fully consistent with those already 
set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84(a)5v for advanced treatment systems that 
have been permanently authorized for use in the Pinelands Area. To 
avoid confusion, the Commission believes it important that certification 
requirements for all systems be identical. 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84(a)5iv(2)(F) and (3)(F) are proposed for 
amendment to update the cross-references in these sections to the Pilot 
Program requirements that are recodified at N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.22(a)5. 

As the Commission has provided a 60-day comment period for this 
notice of proposal, this notice is excepted from the rulemaking calendar 
requirement, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 1:30-3.3(a)5. 

Social Impact 

No adverse social impact is anticipated as a consequence of the 
adoption of the proposed amendments. Society as a whole benefits from 
the protection of the Pinelands and the proposed amendments are 
designed to do just that. Any social impacts that do result are expected to 
be positive. Conversely, a negative social impact might result should the 
proposed amendments not be adopted. This stems from the fact that the 
existing rules, at N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.22(a)4 and 10.23(h), prohibit the 
installation of pilot program treatment systems after August 5, 2018. 
Absent the adoption of the proposed amendments, pilot program systems 
could no longer be used after that date for residential development on 
unsewered properties of less than 3.2 acres in the Pinelands Area. Even 
with the proposal of the herein amendments, there will be a period of 
several months after August 5th when installation of new pilot program 
systems cannot proceed because the rulemaking process will not yet be 
complete. 

Economic Impact 

The economic impact of the proposed amendments to the Pilot 
Program for Alternate Design Wastewater Treatment Systems will 
clearly be positive for those landowners seeking to develop their one- to 
3.2-acre properties in unsewered areas of the Pinelands Area. Without 
the proposed amendments, use of pilot program technologies would not 
be permitted after August 5, 2018. Landowners would then have limited 
options available to them; they could only use one of the three 
permanently approved advanced treatment technologies. Reduced 
choices could drive up the prices of these three approved technologies. 
Non-adoption of the amendments would also create a problem for 
landowners and homebuilders with applications in progress, if they were 



PROPOSALS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 NEW JERSEY REGISTER, MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018 (CITE 50 N.J.R. 1525) 

unable to install their proposed pilot program systems prior to August 5, 
2018. The Commission is seeking to minimize negative economic 
impacts by proposing the amendments at this time, so as to shorten the 
time period within which pilot program system installations will not be 
permitted and limit the number of negatively affected property owners 
and applicants 

Environmental Impact 

Elimination of the installation deadline associated with the Alternate 
Design Wastewater Treatment Systems Pilot Program is expected to 
provide environmental benefit. Elimination of the deadline provides a 
continued opportunity for installation of new systems, which carries with 
it the opportunity for the Commission to collect data and monitor 
existing pilot program technologies and authorize new prescreened 
advanced wastewater treatment systems to enter the program and be 
installed and monitored. The installation of additional systems will result 
in more monitoring and testing of effluent, and this will ultimately 
provide the Commission with more data to be evaluated as part of the 
pilot program. Provided they are maintained properly, these systems 
provide the potential for improved water quality when compared with 
conventional septic systems. 

Federal Standards Statement 

Section 502 of the National Parks and Recreation Act of 1978 (16 
U.S.C. § 471i) called upon the State of New Jersey to develop a 
comprehensive management plan for the Pinelands National Reserve. 
The original plan adopted in 1980 was subject to the approval of the 
United States Secretary of the Interior, as are all amendments to the plan. 

The Federal Pinelands legislation sets forth rigorous goals that the 
plan must meet, including the protection, preservation, and enhancement 
of the land and water resources of the Pinelands. The proposed 
amendments are designed to meet those goals by allowing for the 
continued installation and monitoring of alternate design wastewater 
treatment systems for residential development through a highly 
successful pilot program. 

There are no other Federal requirements that apply to the subject 
matter of these amendments. 

Jobs Impact 

Elimination of the impending deadline in the Pilot Program provides 
a continued opportunity for new home construction in areas that are 
zoned for such use, but are not served by public sewerage infrastructure. 
The proposed amendments may, therefore, result in the creation of jobs 
associated with new home construction. Conversely, non-adoption of the 
proposed amendments could have a negative impact on job creation by 
limiting the options of a small number of residential homebuilders in the 
unsewered portions of the Pinelands Area. 

Agriculture Industry Impact 

The proposed amendments are not expected to impact the agriculture 
industry in the Pinelands. 

Regulatory Flexibility Analysis 

The proposed amendments allow for installation of certain 
wastewater treatment technologies for residential development in the 
Pinelands Area beyond the August 5, 2018 deadline currently specified 
in the CMP. They also clarify certification requirements involving such 
technologies for purposes of ensuring consistency throughout the CMP. 
All of the other reporting, recordkeeping, and compliance requirements 
of the Pilot Program continue to apply to the manufacturers of alternate 
design wastewater treatment systems authorized for use in the Pinelands 
Area. It is believed that at least some of these manufacturers may be 
small businesses, as defined under the Regulatory Flexibility Act, 
N.J.S.A. 52:14B-16 et seq. In meeting the standards for use of the 
authorized technologies that would continue to be authorized under the 
Pilot Program, these businesses may continue to incur costs relative to 
ensuring compliance with the maintenance and monitoring requirements 
of recodified N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.22(a)6. It is unlikely, however, that 
engaging professional services will be necessary in order to do so. The 
design of systems for approval by county health departments and other 
agencies requires the services of a professional engineer under existing 
State law; that requirement is not changed by the proposed amendments. 

Furthermore, the requirements at recodified N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.22(a)6 
merely involve the provision of certain manuals, maintenance 
guarantees, and other documents that the manufacturers already have on 
hand, as well as the provision of resources for the collection and analysis 
of effluent sampling. This is not to say that the requirements represent 
insignificant costs for the manufacturers, particularly for the five-year 
non-cancellable maintenance contract required by N.J.A.C. 7:50-
10.22(a)6vii. However, these requirements are a critical part of the 
proposed pilot program and the Commission would not be able to extend 
or expand the program without them. In any case, it is likely that the 
associated costs will be passed on to the homeowner by the 
manufacturers. These costs represent a relatively small price to pay for 
the opportunity to develop lots that would otherwise not be developable. 

No differing requirements have been established for small businesses 
under the Pilot Program. Instead, the same maintenance and monitoring 
requirements will continue to be imposed relative to the authorized 
technologies, regardless of business size. This is necessary to balance 
protection of Pinelands resources with the Commission’s desire to 
provide a continued opportunity for residential development on lots that 
are less than 3.2 acres in size in unsewered areas of the Pinelands. In 
fact, the Commission has identified proper system maintenance as the 
primary factor in ensuring that the alternate technologies will function in 
a manner that is consistent with CMP water quality standards. It is, 
therefore, critical that the requirements continue to be imposed on all of 
the manufacturers or their agents. 

The proposed amendments impose no other reporting, recordkeeping, 
or compliance requirements on small businesses, as defined under the 
Regulatory Flexibility Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-16 et seq. 

Housing Affordability Impact Analysis 

The proposed amendments have the potential to reduce the cost of 
alternate design treatment systems for those landowners seeking to 
develop homes on lots between one and 3.2 acres in size in the 
unsewered portions of the Pinelands Area. With the removal of the 
installation deadline for such systems, current and future technologies 
participating in the Pilot Program may continue to be used. A range of 
options for landowners is thereby preserved, perhaps leading to 
increased competition among the vendors of existing and new pilot 
program technologies, resulting in decreased costs of the systems for 
homeowners. 

While the proposed amendments may result in a decrease in the costs 
of alternate design treatment systems, and, therefore, a decrease in the 
average cost of housing utilizing such systems, it is important to note 
that these systems are being installed in the unsewered portions of the 
Pinelands Area and primarily in the Regional Growth Areas, Pinelands 
Villages, and Pinelands Towns. Permitted densities in the unsewered 
portions of these management areas are relatively low, ranging from one 
unit per acre to one unit per 3.2 acres. Housing units in those portions of 
the Pinelands Area within which most affordable housing is targeted or 
anticipated would not be affected as such units are typically expected to 
be served by public sanitary sewer. 

Smart Growth Development Impact Analysis 

The proposed amendments allow for the continued installation and 
monitoring of alternate design treatment systems for residential 
development in the Pinelands Area through the Commission’s Pilot 
Program. These systems are used by landowners in the unsewered 
portions of the Pinelands Area that are zoned for residential development 
on lots of less than 3.2 acres in size. These areas are primarily located in 
Regional Growth Areas, Pinelands Villages, and Pinelands Towns, 
management areas designated for development by the CMP, equivalent 
to designated centers under the State Development and Redevelopment 
Plan. The proposed amendments do not increase the amount of permitted 
residential development in these management areas; rather, they provide 
a continued opportunity for the development of housing in accordance 
with municipal zoning plans that were previously approved by the 
Commission. Thus, the proposed amendments are not expected to result 
in any changes in housing production within designated centers or in any 
other portions of the Pinelands Area. There will be no effect on new 
construction in Planning Areas 1 and 2, or within designated centers, as 



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION PROPOSALS 

(CITE 50 N.J.R. 1526) NEW JERSEY REGISTER, MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018  

designated by the State Development and Redevelopment Plan as these 
State Planning Areas do not exist in the Pinelands Area. 

Racial and Ethnic Community Criminal and Public Safety Impact 

The Commission has evaluated this rulemaking and determined that it 
will not have an impact on pretrial detention, sentencing, probation, or 
parole policies concerning adults and juveniles in the State. Accordingly, 
no further analysis is required. 

Full text of the proposal follows (additions indicated in boldface 
thus; deletions indicated in brackets [thus]): 

SUBCHAPTER 6. MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS AND MINIMUM 
STANDARDS 

PART VIII—WATER QUALITY 

7:50-6.84 Minimum standards for point and non-point source 
discharges 

(a) The following point and non-point sources may be permitted in 
the Pinelands: 

1.-4. (No change.) 
5. Individual on-site septic waste water treatment systems that are 

intended to reduce the level of nitrate/nitrogen in the waste water, 
provided that the following standards are met: 

i.-iii. (No change.) 
iv. The design of the system and its discharge point, and the size of 

the entire contiguous parcel on which the system or systems is located, 
will ensure that ground water exiting from the entire contiguous parcel 
or entering a surface body of water will not exceed two parts per million 
nitrate/nitrogen calculated pursuant to the Pinelands dilution model 
dated December, 1993, as amended, (Appendix A) subject to the 
provisions of (a)5v below and based on the following assumptions and 
requirements. For purposes of this section, the entire contiguous parcel 
may include any contiguous lands to be dedicated as open space as part 
of the proposed development but may not include previously dedicated 
road rights-of-way or any contiguous lands that have been deed 
restricted pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.30 or 5.47: 

(1) (No change.) 
(2) For Amphidrome, Bioclere, and FAST systems: 
(A)-(E) (No change.) 
(F) The manufacturer or its agent shall provide to each owner an 

operation and maintenance manual and shall provide a five-year 
warranty consistent with the requirements of N.J.A.C. 7:50-
10.22[(a)6viii](a)5viii; 

(G)-(J) (No change.) 
(3) Other on-site septic waste water treatment systems shall only be 

credited with reducing total nitrogen concentration to the extent 
authorized by an experimental monitoring program approved by the 
Pinelands Commission. Such an experimental monitoring program shall 
only be approved if: 

(A)-(E) (No change.) 
(F) The system meets all the requirements in N.J.A.C. 7:50-

10.22[(a)6i](a)5i through x; and 
(G) (No change.) 
v.-ix. (No change.) 
6. (No change.) 

SUBCHAPTER 10. PILOT PROGRAMS 

PART IV—ALTERNATE DESIGN TREATMENT SYSTEMS PILOT 
PROGRAM 

7:50-10.22 General standards 
(a) Alternate design pilot program treatment systems shall be 

authorized for residential use in all municipalities provided that the 
following standards are met: 

1.-3. (No change.) 
[4. The USEPA ETV or NSF/ANSI Standard 245 technologies 

approved by the Commission for participation in the pilot program 
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.23(b) are authorized to be installed until 
August 5, 2018.] 

[5.] 4. The Executive Director shall submit an annual report to the 
Commission describing installation, maintenance, and performance data 
for each technology. The Executive Director also shall submit an interim 
report to the Commission if it is determined there is a significant 
installation, maintenance, or performance issue with one or more 
technologies that needs to be addressed before the issuance of the next 
annual report. Copies of each annual and interim report shall be provided 
to each manufacturer and agent of a technology that is discussed in that 
report. If it is determined in a report either that a manufacturer or its 
agent is not adhering to any of the requirements of this pilot program or 
that any one of the technologies, based on maintenance or installation 
issues or on an evaluation of all the monitoring results for that 
technology under this pilot program, is not meeting the minimum water 
quality standards in N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.83 or the two parts per million total 
nitrogen requirement in [(a)6x] (a)5x below on all lots smaller than 3.2 
acres or on lots smaller than a particular size because the effluent exiting 
the system is higher than was anticipated in establishing the lot sizes in 
(a)3 above: 

i.-ii. (No change.) 
[6.] 5. Conditions for use of alternate design pilot program treatment 

systems are as follows: 
i.-iv. (No change.) 
v. The manufacturer or its agent and a New Jersey licensed 

professional engineer shall certify to the Commission and the local 
board of health that installation of each system has been properly 
completed and that the system and all of its components are 

operating properly. The manufacturer or its agent shall include in 
the certification the cost of the installation and a description of any 
problem encountered during the installation; 

vi.-xiii. (No change.) 
(b)-(c) (No change.) 

7:50-10.23 Pinelands Commission approval and evaluation 
(a)-(g) (No change.) 
[(h) Nothing in this section shall be construed to authorize the 

installation of any USEPA ETV and NSF/ANSI Standard 245 treatment 
technology approved by the Commission for participation in the pilot 
program after August 5, 2018 as set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-10.22(a)4, 
unless a rule has been adopted by the Commission that expressly 
authorizes such installation pursuant to (f) or (g) above.] 

__________ 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

HEALTH 

(a) 

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES BRANCH 

DIVISION OF FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES 

CHILD AND ADOLESCENT HEALTH PROGRAM 

Screening of Children for Elevated Blood Lead 
Levels 

Proposed Readoption with Amendments: N.J.A.C. 
8:51A 

Authorized By: Shereef Elnahal, M.D., M.B.A., Commissioner, 
Department of Health, in consultation with the Public Health 
Council. 

Authority: N.J.S.A. 26:2-137.2 et seq., particularly 26:2-137.7. 

Calendar Reference: See Summary below for explanation of 
exception to calendar requirement. 

Proposal Number: PRN 2018-062. 

Submit electronic comments to http://www.nj.gov/health/legal/ecom 
ments.shtml, or written comments to the address below, by September 
14, 2018, to: 

Joy L. Lindo, Director 
Office of Legal and Regulatory Compliance 
Office of the Commissioner 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

To:  Members of the Pinelands Commission 

 

From:  Susan R. Grogan 

  Chief Planner 

 

Date:  September 28, 2018 

 

Subject: No Substantial Issue Findings 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

During the past month, we reviewed 12 master plan and ordinance amendments that we found to raise 

no substantial issues with respect to the standards of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan. 

These amendments were:  

 

Barnegat Township Ordinance 2018-17 - adopts a revised Zoning Map for purposes of implementing 

the recommendations of the Township’s 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan. The revised 

Zoning Map depicts the boundaries two redevelopment areas previously approved by the Commission, 

the SS-Shoreline Sand & Gravel and Compass Point Redevelopment Area in the Pinelands Regional 

Growth Area and the SJ-Sweet Jenny Redevelopment Area in the Pinelands National Reserve. No other 

zoning boundary changes have been made.  

 

Buena Borough Planning Board Resolution 2018-16 - adopts the 2018 Housing Element and Fair 

Share Plan as part of the Borough’s Master Plan. The Housing Element contains updated data and 

analyses pertaining to the Borough’s current and projected demographics, housing stock, and 

employment. The Borough’s Fair Share Plan, covering the cumulative period 1987-2025, indicates: a 

rehabilitation obligation of 16 units; a prior round obligation of 40 units; and a third round prospective 

need of 43 units. The Fair Share Plan also provides information on past efforts to provide affordable 

housing, mechanisms that will facilitate the attainment of the Borough’s affordable housing obligation, 

and a spending plan for collected development fees.  

 

Buena Borough Ordinance 670 - implements the Borough’s Fair Share Plan by amending Chapter 150, 

Land Use. Ordinance 670 amends Chapter 150 by establishing Article XIV, Affordable Housing, and 

includes provisions related to: design requirements for new affordable housing construction; affordable 

unit controls and requirements; the administration of the affordable housing program; residential and 

non-residential development fees; procedures for the collection of the development fees; an affordable 

housing trust fund; eligible expenditures of development fees collected; and an affirmative marketing 



2 

 

plan. The ordinance also establishes a Housing Overlay Zone (AH-1) that encompasses two lots, both of 

which are located outside of the Pinelands Area. 

 

Monroe Township Ordinance O:23-2018 - amends Chapter 175, Land Management, of the 

Township’s Code in response to amendments to the CMP. These amendments include revisions to 

definitions, types of development exempt from application, notice requirements and installation of 

advanced wastewater treatment systems. 

 

Upper Township 2018 Master Plan Reexamination Report - includes an update on the major problems 

and objectives related to land development identified in the Township’s previous Master Plan 

Reexamination Report (2011), a discussion of the changes in policies and objectives since the prior 

report and a summary of recommended changes to the master plan and municipal land development 

regulations. Newly recommended ordinance changes affecting the Pinelands Area portion of the 

Township include the adoption of recent amendments to the Pinelands CMP and updating the sign 

ordinance to allow electronic message signs in the Pinelands Area for governmental and institutional 

uses. The report also recommends that the Township consider future improvements to on-

site stormwater management controls for residential properties, clarifications to subdivision and site plan 

controls pertaining to changes to flood elevations, permitting vehicle charging stations and establishing 

dark sky lighting standards. 

 

Upper Township 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan - contains updated data and analyses 

pertaining to the Township’s current and projected demographics, housing stock, and employment. The 

Fair Share Plan, covering the cumulative period 1987-2025, indicates: a rehabilitation obligation of 14 

units, a prior round obligation of 317 units, and a third round prospective need of 233 units. The Fair 

Share Plan also provides information on past efforts to provide affordable housing, mechanisms that will 

facilitate the attainment of the Township’s affordable housing obligation, and an updated spending plan 

for collected development fees.  

 

Upper Township Ordinance 011-2018 - implements the Township’s 2018 Master Plan Reexamination 

Report and 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan. Ordinance 011-2018 amends Chapter XX, 

Zoning, of the Township’s Code by establishing the Marmora Town Center District and related zoning 

district standards. Based on the zoning map adopted by Ordinance 011-2018, the new zone is located 

entirely outside of the Pinelands Area, in the Regional Growth Area of the Pinelands National Reserve. 

Ordinance 0-11-2018 also establishes requirements for new affordable housing construction, affordable 

unit controls, administration of the affordable housing program and an affirmative marketing plan. 

 

Waterford Township Ordinance 2018-23 - amends Chapter 176, Land Use, Development and Zoning, 

of the Township’s Code by removing the definition of “Farm Setting”, changing the definition of “Farm 

Animals” to “Agricultural Animals”, and adding new definitions related to equine species and suitable 

enclosures, specifically excluding shipping containers or crates, truck bodies or vans or similar 

enclosures used for the housing of animals.  

 

Waterford Township Ordinance 2018-24 - amends Chapter 176 by providing conditions under which 

non-equine agricultural animals may be kept and maintained, providing different conditions under which 

horses are permitted, and providing for general requirements for the keeping of animals related to 

sanitation, fencing, shelter, and manure control.  

 

Waterford Township Ordinance 2018-25 - amends Chapter 176 by prohibiting the permanent 

installation of any sporting or recreational equipment between the curb and sidewalk of any street, and 



3 

 

providing for the placement of portable sporting equipment under certain conditions related to location 

and  setbacks, and outside the dates January 1
st
 through March 31

st
.   

 

Weymouth Township Ordinance 561-2018 - amends Chapter 155, Land Use, of the Township’s Code 

by establishing a new section, Sustainable Energy Accessory Use Systems, to permit accessory wind and 

solar energy systems in various zoning districts in the Pinelands Area. The ordinance requires that such 

systems meet standards related to minimum lot size, minimum setbacks, maximum height and noise, 

among others. Ordinance 561-2018 also includes provisions for the abandonment of such systems. 

 

Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-018 - amends Chapters 40, 218 and 296 of the Township’s 

Code in response to amendments to the CMP. These amendments include revisions to definitions, types 

of development exempt from application, notice requirements and installation of advanced wastewater 

treatment systems. 


	Packet Summary Memo
	Agenda
	Approval of the September 14, 2018 Meeting Minutes
	Attachments to the Minutes
	Resolution - Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (App. No. 1982-2731.011)
	Resolution - Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (App. No. 2001-0236.001)
	Resolution - Approving With Conditions an Application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance (App. No. 1985-0713.002)
	Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approvals
	List of Pending Development and Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications accepting public comment at the October 12, 2018 Commission Meeting
	Resolution - Issuing an Order to Certify the Housing Element and Fair Share Plan and Ordinances 1993-2018 and 1994-2018 of Galloway Township
	Resolution - Issuing an Order to Certify Pemberton Township Ordinance 13-2018, Amending the Browns Mills Town Center Redevelopment Plan
	Resolution - Determining the Eligibility of a Parcel of Land for Acquisition by the Department of Environmental Protection Pursuant to the Limited Practical Use Program
	Resolution - To Adopt Amendments to the Comprehensive Management Plan in Accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act (Alternate Design Wastewater Treatment Systems Pilot Program)
	Memorandum - No Substantial Issue Findings



